Mavers Memorial Hospital

Chief Executive Officer Board of Directors
Louis Ward, MHA Michael D. Kerns, President
BOARD of DIRECTORS e
g i Abe Hathaway, Secretary
MELLING AGENDA A
June 28, 2017 1:00 pm en AIDAtEN, _ reasurer

Board Room {Burney) Laura Beyer, Director

Mission Statement
Mayers Memorial Flospital District serves the Infermountain area providing outstanding patieni-centered healthcare

to improve quality of life through dedicated, compassionate staff and innovative technology.

1 | CALL MEETING TO ORDER — Mike Kemns, President

2 | CALL FOR REQUEST FROM THE AUDIENCE: PUBLIC COMMENTS OR TO SPEAK TO AGENDA ITEMS:
Persons wishing to address the Board are requested to fill out a "Request Form” prior to the beginning of the meeting (forms are
available from the Clerk of the Board (M-W), 43563 Highway 299 East, Fall River Mills, or in the Board Room). If you have
documents to present for the members of the Board of Directors to review, please provide a minimum of nine copies. When the
President announces the public comment period, requestors will be called upon one-at-a time, please stand and give your name
and comments. Each speaker is allocated five minutes to speak. Comments should be limited to matters within the
jurisdiction of the Board. Pursuant to the Brown Act (Govt, Code section 54950 et seq.) action or Board discussion
cannot be taken on open time matters other than to receive the comments and, if deemed necessary, to refer the subject
matter to the appropriate department for follow-up and/or to schedule the matter on a subsequent Board Agenda.

3 | APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
3.1 Regular Meeting — May 24, 2017 (Attachment A) ACTION ITEM

4 ' Department/Operations Reports/Recognitions:

4.1 Resolution 2017-07-May Employee of the Month (Attachment B) ............cc.coooce :rg;“’z’z ;:EM

*Please Note: Chief reports will now be at the end of the agenda in order to expand on discussion or
answer questions regarding items that were addressed on the full agenda.

4.2 Scheduled Director Report - Jack Hathaway, Director of Quality {Attachment C )

Report
4.5 Director of Operations Report — Ryan Harris (Attachment D ) ert
5 | BOARD COMMITTEES:
5.1 Finance Committee —Chair Allen Albaugh
5.1.1 Committee Meeting Report Information
5.1.2 May 2017 Financial review, AP, AR and acceptance of financials .............ccceveneees ACTION ITEM

(Dispersed Separately)
5.1.3 USDA Resolutions (Attachment E)

For the general abligation refunding bonds: RESQOLUTION 2017-08 OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTION ITEMS
OF THE MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE 1SSUANCE AND SALE
OF THE DISTRICT'S 2017 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND

P.0. Box 459 - 43563 Highway 299 East, Fall River Mills, CA 96028 Tel. (530) 336-5511 Fax {530) 336-6199 http://www.mayersmemorial.com



Page 2

For the new money general obligation bonds: RESOLUTION 2017-09 OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE
AND SALE OF THE DISTRICT'S GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, ELECTION OF 2010, SERIES B
(2017)

For the new money and refunding COPs; RESOLUTIONS 2017-10{a) (b) APPROVING THE FORM
AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF CERTAIN LEASE FINANCING DOCUMENTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING AND SALE OF CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION
RELATING THERETO TO FINANCE CAPITAL PROJECTS AND REFINANCE PRIOR OBLIGATIONS
AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING CERTAIN ACTIONS WITH RESPECT THERETO

5.1.4 Siemens RFP Approval (Attachment F) ACTION ITEM
5.1.5 RESOLUTION 2017-11 Adoption of MMHD FY18 Operating Budget (Attachment G) | ACTION ITEM
5.1.6 Physician Recruitment Resolution 2017-12 (Dispersed Separalely) ACTION ITEM

5.2 Strategic Planning Committee —Chair Mike Kerns
5.2.1 Committee Meeting REPOIL ... .ttt e s e s s et

5,2,2 Health Need ASSESSMENE REPOIL.........o.vvsessressssorsssssssmmsessssssmssssssssssmsnmssmsosssessresmnnene | INOFMALION
Information

5.3 Quality Committee —Chair Beatriz Vasquez
5.3.1 Committee Meelting REPOIL..........cccoririeirie vt sre e e s e ar s nssnss s
Information
6 . NEW BUSINESS

6.1 Policies for Approval (Sent as PDF) ACTION ITEM
» Board Compensation & Reimbursement

Cardiology Privileges

Dermatology Telemedicine Privileges

Discount and Charity Care Application MMH457

False Claims Checklist

Whistleblower Appendix A MMH255A

Pain Management Telemedicine Privileges

Physician Assistant Core Privileges

Psychiatry Telemedicine Privileges

Radiology Core Privileges, Vascular and

Interventional

» Service Recovery Form (Complaint Non-Employee)
MMHS5

7 | 7.1 Administration Reports: *Note: Chief reports will now be at the end of the meeting in
order to expand on discussion or answer questions regarding items that were addressed on the
full agenda. Written report are provided in board packet — additional comments as need verbally

» Chief's Reports (CEO, CNO, CCOQ, CFO, IHF CEO) (Attachment H) Informatian

8 | 8.1 INFORMATION/REPORTS/BOARD EDUCATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS
» Board Comments, Upcoming Events, etc.



Page 3

» Legislative Update — Val Lakey
9 | ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION:

9.1 Government Code Section 54962:
Quality Assurance: Quality Improvement Issues, Medical Staff Report (Dr. Tom Watson, Chief of Staff)

AHP APPOINTMENT
Sara Marchessault, NP ACTION ITEM
9.2 Personnel Government Code 54957 — CEO Review/Evaluation Discussion

10 | RECONVENE OPEN SESSION
REPORT CLOSED SESSION ACTION Discussion

11 ADJOURNMENT: Next Regular Meeting July 26, 2017 Fall River Mills

Public records which relate to any of the matters on this agenda (axcept Closed Session items), and which have been distributed to the members of the Board,
are avallable for public inspection at the office of the Clerk to the Board of Directors, 43553 Highway 299 East, Fall River Mills CA 95028,
This document and other Board of Directors documents are available online at waw. mayversmemaorial.com.

Posted/Distributed 06/21/17






ttachment A _ o
A ?;RA;}I Mayers Memorial Hospital District

Board of Directors — Regular Board Meeting

Date: May 24, 2017

Time: 5:00 P.M,

Location: Mayers Memorial Hospital
Fall River Mills, California

(These minutes are not intended to be a verbatim transcription of the proceedings and discussions associated with the
business of the board's agenda; rather, what follows is a summary of the order of business and general nature of
testimony, deliberations and action taken.)

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER: President Kerns called the regular meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.
on the above date with the following present:
Mike Kerns, President
Beatriz Vasquez, Vice President
Abe Hathaway, Secretary
Allen Albaugh, Treasurer
Laura Beyer

Board Members Absent:
Staff Present: Louis Ward, CEO; Travis Lakey, CFO; Marlene McArthur; Ryan Harris, Director of

Operations Valerie Lakey, DOPR/Cierk of the Board, Sherry Wilson, CNO, Keith Earnest, CCO Pam Sweet,
Med Staff Secretary, Dr. Watson

2. CALL FOR REQUEST FROM AUDIENCE TO SPEAK TO ISSUES OR AGENDA ITEMS:
2.1 Public Comment — none

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES — A motion/second and carried, the Board of Directors accepted the
minutes of the April 26, 2017 Regular Board Meeting. (Beyer, Hathaway)— Approved All
(Vasquez Abstain)

4. Department/Operations Reports/Recognitions:

4.1 Resolution 2017-6-April Employee of the Month. Edward Wright was recognized as April
2017 TEAM MAYERS MVP. Presented by Abe Hathaway (Albaugh, Beyer) Approved All

4.2 Med Staff Report — Pam Sweet Reported on the MVHC providers that are credentialing:
Sharon Hanson, Heather Corr, Jesse Arnold, Dr Smith-Chase. We also have Sara Marchessault
from the Canby Clinic. We currently have 38 credentialed physicians including 4 mid-levels, We
will continue to discuss Physician issues at Strategic Planning

4.3 Telemedicine Report — Ward gave an overview of the telemedicine project. There has been a
lot of progress in the last month. California Telehealth Resource Center and CTN and DHCS all
came together for a five year grant. The funded program selected 2 sites per year to receive
resources, training, consulting. MMHD was chosen this year. Ward showed the cart to the
board. The room is complete, There is another cart in Burney. We are looking at July to see
patients. There is opportunity for tele-physc in Burney. There are many options for specialty —
dermatology, cardiac, etc. There will be a tele-med coordinator. This service had been funded
primarily by grant resources. USDA grant — matching grant for the equipment. $100,000 from
Partnership. There was also some discussion of the billing process for the service,

*Please Note: Chief reports will now be at the end of the agenda in order to expand on discussion or
answer questions regarding items that were addressed on the full agenda.

4.4 Scheduled Director Report — Marlene McArthur, IHF Executive Director— (Written
report provided in packet) Golf Tournament — Save the Date, August 19, 2017, The
Foundation is still in the quiet phase of the campaign until about August. We have raised about
$2.1 million. Trying to raise 80% of the $3 million before going to the community. We have had
2 pieces of land donated that are listed for sale. $37,000 in grant funding was just awarded to
MMHD departments. The Foundation has just approved 7 scholarships. McArthur also mentioned
items including See's Candy in the qift shop.(Father’s Day ideas)




DRAFT

Mayers Memorial Hospital District
Board of Directors — Regular Board Meeting
April 26,2017
Page 2 of 4

4.5 Director of Operations report - Ryan Harris (Written report provided in packet) Acute
Survey, Fire Life Survey were discussed. Mock survey was very helpful, Some corrections were made
based on Mock Survey. Fire Life Safety mostly had issues with old portion of the building. Parking lot in
Burney has been looked at by Hat Creek. We will have estimates soon. Harris reported on the SNF
refresh — there is a design. We hope to do door skins before the next survey. Greenbough also looked
over the pharmacy project. We may have to replace an AC unit. We should have an estimate soon, We
will have more on the Burney Clinic building next month, Samples were presented for the new building.
There was a meeting on the headwalls today. Drafts will be prepared based on the meeting. Albaugh
asked if the design of the building is on budget — Harris said yes. RFP has been sent out for the
imaging equipment. This will be presented at the June 28'" meeting. Survey went well for dietary.
Susan and Jennifer (dietary) will be starting the CDM program. Survey went well for Environmental
Services. IT — spending time to be sure we are safe from the Ransomware attacks.

5. BOARD COMMITTEES:

5.1 Finance Committee —Chair Allen Albaugh
5.1.1 Committee Meeting — Reviewed the notes sent out by Travis Lakey. Albaugh noted
that the expenditures are exceeding the revenue. Services revenue by departments is declining.
This is mostly due to lack of referrals. We will be keeping an eye on things closely. The
committee heard a report from Physical Therapy, which is progressing well. PT is a good source
of revenue and very well thought of in the public. Would like to see the service in Burney.
Looking at OT in the department.
5.1.2 April Financials — {(Albaugh, Hathaway) — Approved All

5.2 Strategic Planning Committee — Chair Mike Kerns
5.2.1 Committee meeting = Relationship with MVHC and referrals. Dave Jones, MVHC CEQ
attended, Jim Billo, MVHC Board member and Dr. Watson attended. There was discussion on
surgery referrals. Surgery has adapted a couple of referral forms. Discussed surgeries including
orthopedic. Looking at putting together an executive team with MVHC.
5.2.2 Clinic Collaboration/Physician Recruitment — There has been continued discussion
with MVHC regarding these challenges.

5.3 Quality Committee — Chair Vasquez
5.3.1 Committee Meeting Report — Several department reports. Cardiac has new
equipment. Currently working on Stress Treadmill service going. Outpatient Services reported
that they have had good patient survey results., They are working on capturing patient charges.
Med Staff also gave a report. We have met the numbers on the PRIME program. There was also
a good presentation from Keith Earnest, pharmacy regarding a labeling issue.




Mayers Memorial Hospital District

DRAFT

Board of Directors — Regular Board Meeting

April 26, 2017
Page 3 of 4

6. NEW BUSINESS

6.1 Policies for Approval — A/l approved (Vasquez, Hathaway)
e Counting -- Sponges Sharps and Instruments
e Items Issued from Inventory
e Annual Program Evaluation
e Administrator On Call

7. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS:

In addition to the written operations report included in the board packet, the following
verbal reports and discussions are summarized below:

Louis Ward, CEO - In addition to the written report - Outpatient market study is
complete. Itis in the review process. Community Health Needs Assessment from the Hwy 299
Collaborative was completed 265 surveys were completed. Shasta County is not doing well — we
are 57 of 58 counties. Number one response was that specialties are too far away. There is a
need for services in the area of cancer. Medicare patients ranked the hospital high — med-cal
ranked it lower. There will be a full report at Strategic Planning.

Washington DC trip was very interesting trip. There was a lot of discussion regarding the impact
of the new federal budget. We are keeping an eye on the situation,

We are up $2.2 million for the year.

Travis Lakey, CFO — Lakey noted that he provided a Chart of payments by plan code. On the
balance sheet - the receivables are for grant money. We are at about $800,000 of the $1 mil
we need to spend on building (Reimbursable) Currently, we are working on the budget process
right now.

Keith Earnest, CCO — In addition to the written report Earnest highlighted that Taylor
Sloat will be doing some work experience in our PT Dept. Susan Reed was here and did a
pharmacy mock survey. Grants have been awarded from the foundation throughout the




DRAFT

Mayers Memorial Hospital District

Board of Directors —~ Regular Board Meeting
April 26, 2017
Page 4 of 4

departments in the hospital. Point Click Care - will go live with medication administration on July
1

« Sherry Wilson, CNO — In addition to the written report: Welcome back to Sherry.
Overton gave the report on the Acute survey. Reviewed Crash Cart. We will have a pediatric
crash cart at station 1. We are still waiting on 2567 in order to do the plan of corrections. We
are working on Insulin drip protocol. Additionally, we are working on humidity in surgery. The
surveyors were very helpful. Overton reported that we are still working on staffing in ER.

8. INFORMATION/BOARD EDUCATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS
BOARD COMMENTS, UPCOMING EVENTS, ETC. -
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:

9. Announcement of CLOSED SESSION — 6:42 pm - Approved All

9.1 Government Code Section 54957:
Quality Assurance: Quality Improvement Issues, Medical Staff Report (Dr. Tom Watson, Chief of Staff)

(Health & Safety Code §32155)

MEDICAL STAFF REAPPOINTMENT (Albaugh, Vasquez) Approved
All
Scott Bleazard, MD - Radiology

Scott Ramus, MD - Radiology
Sean Pitman, MD - Pathology

AHP APPOINTMENT
Sharon Hanson, FNP

9.2 Real Property Government Code Section 54956.8

None
9.3 Personnel Government Code 54957

10. Reconvene Open Session - (Albaugh/Hathaway) All Privileges Approved

| 12, ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, at the hour of 7:15 p.m., President Kerns
declared the meeting adjourned. Next meeting June 28, 2017 — 1:00 pm- Burney




ATTACHMENT B

Mayers Memorial Hospital District

Always Caring. Always Here.

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-7

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT RECOGNIZING

Sondra Camacho
As May 2017 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has adopted the MMHD Employee Recognition

Program to identify exceptional employees who deserve to be recognized and honored for their
contribution to MMHD; and

WHEREAS, such recognition is given to the employee meeting the criteria of the program,
namely exceptional customer service, professionalism, high ethical standards, initiative,
innovation, teamwork, productivity, and service as a role model for other employees; and

WHEREAS, the MMHD Employee Recognition Committee has considered all
nominations for the MMHD Employee Recognition Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, Sondra Camacho is hereby named
Mayers Memorial Hospital District Employee of the Month for May 2017; and

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of June 2017 by the Board of Trustees
of Mayers Memorial Hospital District by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Mike Kerns, CHAIRMAN
Board of Trustees, Mayers Memorial Hospital District
ATTEST:

Valerie L. Lakey
Clerk of the Board of Directors



Employee of the Month Recognition — January 2016
PO-005a



ATTReHm e 7T C

(4 LT 6 (44 |e3ot
Io uonduasuet)
T 9 v 9 L1 punoj ou yaied
T z £ uonedlpaN SuoIM
z 4 9 jot awy) 3uoim
€ 9 6 350(] 1221102u)|
lo JUNOY) 1221100U|
lo 3|qe|ieAy 10N
_o uoneay Snug
lo 10413 |1t
1 S € [4 13 pAWO
lo juaned Suoipm
yYI1D |su1d|zuio | Tuid wang3
a)ey 10413 uonedpalNy
9 62 St 132 |erol
9 9 9 8T umouwyun| |9 6¢ S 114 [e10L
T 9 6 8 vz qepf v F44 1€ €7 08 100]4 U0 puno
T S € (4 it pag 1% 8 L 61 passaulim l1ed
[4 14 8 T [ wooJyleg 1 9 L pada|lv I1ed
z 8 6T e €S Suneinquy| |z z 9 5 ST 100[4 0} paIsISSY
41D | e¥1o [zuio | TuLd :03 pajefay v ¥10 |[eurd | zuio | TalD 3uaA3

sjeol |jed/dys

LT-1dy yoday Ajijenp suisinp pa|is



aunr 12 1€ 134 Ie101
Aeiy [4 [4 14 JBy10
vZ'0 judy [4 T 14 B3Jy pay
FA At yaiew 0 4215119
o0 qo4 0 p28e3s 433N ainssalyd
S0 uef 0 ¢ade)s Ja0jn ainssald
650 RETy I I 798e3s Ja3)n ainssald
LT0 AON 0 T28e1s 133N 2Unssald
LE°0 120 0 uing
12°0 ydas 3 3 S T uoisesqy
SEQ sndny 6 6 (43 €E asinig
9T'0 Ainr 6 ST [44 6V lea)
aey YIUo PYlD |€¥1D | 2HID | TULD uaag
|o41u0) uondajuil Aya3aju) upys
lo 1 lo jo
0 Asuoy
0 HEIS jedlpainN T 0 0 jelol
0 duisany 0 Jaul0
0 BuidaayasnoH T T aakojdw?
T I 323G poOo4 0 suiedisAld
0 $32)M3s Bul)g 0 JousiafApwey
0 Aljenuapyuo)i 0 luaned
PYLD | €¥LD { ZYULD | THID 10} pajejay T HID |EHID | ZHID | THID Jjuaal

sjurejdwo’)




qge| passiw

nssi

s34 /ainpaloid

0 lo lo [e3oL
0 JAYI0
I0
0
lo 21ep Buoum meuq qel
lo JUBSUOD O/M BZUBN)YU]
lo palywQ J3pI0
lo s)nsay Junsoday 10413
YLD |EHID | ZYID | THLD u3A3
0 0 lo |e10g
lo 13YI0
[ ewy
_o anss| |eloaeyag
_o 2|e/8nip yo asn |eda3y|
lo ANI3S ul yoeaug
lo 2114
lo Anadoud jo ssoq
T YID |EYID| ZHID | THLD JUDA]

Ajunaas/Aages




JUapISay 03 yuapisay

asnqy |enshyd

910Z/L2/8 é asnqy |eqJan
9102/91/8 é lied
aieq #uapu) P Y1D| EYID| THID| THID JuaA3]

JSIW



N OO W WL KW - NO S

T N W N WS M~ W N

=2
2]

MmN N NN W0 O MmO

ud
uun s3d jiey

o
9
v
€D Tt
148
L1
r4ds) ST
€1
£l
10 91
4!
5|ie} jo #

LT-ung
LT-Aey
LT-1dy
LT-1eIN
L1-93d
LT-uer
91-22Q
9T-AON
91-130
9t1-das
9T-3ny
9tT-inr






FALLS:

II||| Il‘l ...u|| .

» Ay tp Floor 19 @ Tl e 7 -nll\h\gmyrl 1% a fcundﬁ?ﬂ?erm m Foynd en floer Tetat

™
a

w

2

=

<1

I

=

Number of Falls by Month

Jull6 Aug 16 Sep 16 Ocl 16 Nov-16 DBec 16 fan 17 Fetr 17 Mar 47 Apr 17 Moy b1 Jun-?

45

0

[+ 11
045

0.3%
03
02%

e

05
]
ops

4

RELATED TO:

Vptal

Retzbulating mam et Tha Lin

Falls [ Uimit

Mlul‘

Skin Integrity

II Illl "Il & ol e M |||I
1 3% Lt 4 4 Rirrak

1] i) 1 a i) o

L

waf  Bnppe Absasion  Duen Presiwie Pressure Pressbte Pressote Blter fled Arga Cithes
Ulcer  Uleer  AMeet  Ulcer
ilgal  Stagel Staped  Stuged

infection Control Rate

Tuiy Augus irg drt . Tt tadeh e






vondiasues |

[El101

o

puno} uoeNpay
ou yoied Buoapy 2wy Suoip

L1 € 0t
-m—— “1 0

3soQ wuno)
Pauoiu)  1PaL0)
6 0

21ey Jouu3 pay

S|QERAY JON

0

uoloeay
g

0

1013 (114

0

painug

14
l_-

uaned
duoipp

0

ot

18

174

S






AON-9T

1P0-91

das-91

any-91

Inf-9T

unf-91

Ae-91

Jdy-91

JeN-91

q3j-91

uer-9t

AON-9T

1091

any-91

Inr-9t

unf-9t

Aewy-9T

Jdy-91

1EN-GT

q924-91

uer-91

~

1

T

AON-9T

R0o-91

das-91

gny-91

Inr-91

unf-91

M N O Q ™M~ N- O m

o
~

9102

11
Sstoz

1dy-97

O = = O - O

o o

[4)
1ot

JeN-9T

MmO C O NOO-A-AO00C -

€102

q=24-91

uer-gt

auissiy

uoiaunyen

Joarg J3sn

2|qejieay JON
saljddns/iuswdinb3

s|ejoy

Aejag

BNSS| JUISLOD)
psRiwwQ

1521 Juoapn
jualed uoipn
5)sa ] fainpnioad

5|e3ol

Joo)4 U0 punoy
passauM l1ed
pasgally lled
Joo|4 0} pajsissy
slied

2SI
YIVLNAG
Audaiu upis
sjuiedwod
AajesfAunaag

uoisnjsuel| poo|g/snouanesiu|

Aiojendsayfoerpied
suonReNpan
13uwiado|3/YINY
salddns/iuawdinb3
sisa]fainpniosd
Slied

sjuanj



1
AON-9T 13091 das-9T  3ny-9T  In{-91 unr-9T  Aen-9T  ady-9T  Jew-9T  q33-91  uer-91
1 1
1
1
AON-9T  190-9T  des-gT  Sny-9T  |nf-91 unf-9T  ABN-9T  ady-9T  JeW-9T  (94-9T  uer-91
[4 1 1 1 T 1
1 1
1 1 T 1
T
AON-9T 120-9T1  des-g1  8ny-9T  |n[-gT unf-9T  AeN-9T  Jdy-9T  JeN-9T  4o4-9T  uer-9f
1
1
AON-9T 120-9T  dos-9T  38ny-9T  |nr-9T un-9T  Aew-9T  Jdy-9T  Jew-9T Q24-9T  uer-9t
T r4 1 1 I
r4
1 T
1 1
AON-9T 19091  das-gT  3ny-91  |nr-91 unr-gg Aew-9T Jdy-9T  JeN-9T Q3491  uer-g9y
T T
1

1BYI0
asnig

Jeal
Ajudagu) ups

s|e10)
2aAojdug
uepisAyd
swiejdwo)

sjelo)

+ 19410
Pa)Nssy dJH
anss) |el10ABYag

Aumas/Aiages

s|e10)
1BY10
panwo
Aejaq
poo|g

s|e1o|
= 413410
paniwQ
a1noy Suoip
asoq Suospn
awi| Suoapn
1d Suoapp
pay SBuoupn
SuUoiEIIPIAI

s|e104
+ 49410



T

T

T

I

T

1

AON-9T

RO-91

das-g91

gny-91

Inf-91

unr-91

Aew-oT

Jdy-91

Je-9T

g24-91

uer-g9t

s|e3o)

FET)
ISIN

s|ejo]



5|e30] 23Q-9T

5|30 28a-91

1

5|ejo] 29Q-91




pamao|joj you Adjod Juensal g Apwes Juaned yim sjuang

P2y uaaq aAey pINoYs 1eY) PawW B aAe9 1 Jualied uo Suny paw pandx3 ,

auyaew JySiam Suisn ajiym 58pa daeys vo In3 Juaned

5|e10} 23Q0-9T
[4
T
T
s|e30] 23Q@-97
L
[4
v
T
5|eyol 293-91
T
T
s|ejol 2ag-91
L !
[4
T 1
[4
[4
sjexol 22Q-91
[4
T




s|eol 38Q-91




#vi0y 2209t A9t B9t 935t Iny-9l Fy-st wni-9t Aevy-91 sdv-sT Jeve-Si g9l uer-ot hepy

o | SIEIOL 39T AOH-OL 1M0-9L 025-91 Mv-91 FH-9F Un(-8T 90 sdy-90 K131 02390 ver-gL
mwm _
oy .
"o ey
LYY ] e L
G E AV ) B
PO o PatywLg B
Anag e 1£3) Junig B
0 uaey Juaupy E
]
T
POt SR aunpnioag
Ann
U0 330-97 AON-01 09T S35-91 Day-gL (N[0T LNI-OL Aepy-OL xv-0T M-0T G397 uri-9T $I0] 330-9) AON-91 0-9L 55T Iny-51 Inf-9T Wnf-9T 9T sy IRN-9L qag-] U]
L]
=__ _m —_—— —---‘u- u-'11-.‘
1
tpay e
« RpgE t
o) &
PRHMID B 5 e
J— 20013 U0 puno g &
- , PaTLIuIM e g
Palapy ey @
auxy Boop ® L]
o) pajys;
u R [ J00y4 0 pagyTLy
Py oy 5
i
L]
HKNEHpIN sjed
vy &
HEIOL S3a-0L MOH-T 1O-IL Ja5-9T Sny-91 (0T wni-al -91 sy-9] Jepy-0L a)-91 Uri-9T «b?qm\vv
o
Y N
f 31% e
b,#. 2] ﬁ«. g ao.ar .-&7 ﬁﬂ,
I 0 PR I A R A sk..w Ry
i P R T &
L L | [ ] " .
aRpon _ stoz= - m .- - ﬂ ;
Sunupy s . ! stor =
o unye (114
songpE 1 e
Hgepeay o §

r

sapddngfiuaudinby wertspedwoy Apeay






Aoy L N R A ﬂfw 5 ﬁ.&v A
S|e10) 091 AeN-91 L0-91 day-g1 Bay-9L (ni-9] unl-9l -31 sdy-o1 -90 gay-gL ver-9l i 0
-]
- (1] 50
sjeio)L® L] RILIL T
i m aahopd _
wl e
sngE
i veppdyd @
eaym
51
-1
1 [ 4
rn
ST
Apda ups futepdwo)
§|eI0] 339 AON-9T Q-9 das-91 Iny-9 Ji-F1 UN[ 9T Aew-9 Jdu-91 JEN-91 934-91 ver-9l R S R P A @ S e e
’ R A I Al AR L
0
- 1
t z
sjeo) .
oL 1 130 g
Sy PAYNITY JIHE v
t anss epoarygm
5
gL
- 9
: | .
b3 8

W Apmag/hajes






anss| Juasuo)

panIwwQ

dwo) pajdadxaun

pueq wJe op

153 Juospp

[4

Judled duospn

AON-/T

PO-LT

das-/1

Bny-£1

Inr-L1

unr-£1

AeN-£T

Jdy-£T

JeN-LT

Q=d4-L1

uer-/T s3sa) /aanpnioig

s|eyol

100|4 UO puno4

PassaulIm (1.4

padayly (led

JOO[4 0} paisIssy

AON-/T

PO-LT

das-/1

any-£1

INi-LT

LT102

unf-£1

0N O MO A ~N~ O M

o
™~

9102

AeiN-£T

11
stoz

ady-£T

O ™ = O = O ~

Qoo

[4°
v10z

JBN-LT

Mmoo oOMNOO OO0

o
bn)
o
~N

qad-L1

uer-£1 s|ieg

12410
a01dsoH

aing/papy

80

a3

esaylsauy

Aadiung

VIVLIAI

AuSaju) upys

swiedwio)

Aajes/Mundas

uoIsNjsues) poojg/snousaenu)
Aojendsay/oeipie)
SUOIeDIN3A

18uwado|3/vInNY
sa1jddns/auawdinb3

51591 /24npnaosd

slied

SJUaA]



1 ¥
1
S
AON-LT  PO-LT  des4T  8Bny-£T  Inf-LT unp-£T Aew-Z1 ady-ZT JeN-LT 0 Q44T uer-£T
AON-LT  PO-LT  des-LT  Bnv-LT  INM-LT unf-£L1 Aen-¢T  ady-LT JeN-LT Q94-LT  uef-{T
9 4 4 £
1
1
1
1
z z [4
1
1 1
AON-LT  VO-LT desLT  3nv-L1  IPr-LT unr-£1 Aen-£T  ady-LT JRN-LT Q24-LT uer-/T
1 1
1
1
AON-LT  PO-LT  d3s4T  8ny-LT  |N[-£I unr-£T Aew-¢1  ady-£T Jew-LT Q9441 uer4T
z 4 z S
1 1
T

P3NSSY dOH
asnqy 1d
anss] |eloAeyag

AjandagfAyages

s|e1ol
J2410
panIwo
Aejag
poojg

s|e3o0]
+ 42410

paniwo

Jod3 g

#2JeN  1284100U)
1IN0y duoipp
a50Q Suoapp
aw] Suoipp

1d duoap

RN 8uoup
SUOHEIIPIN

s|elol

+ 49410

duissia

uojdUNY|eA}

10413 J3sn

d|qejieay 10N
saljddns /yuswdinb3

s|e1oL
Aejag
anss| 18p10 AN



AON-LT  WO-£T  das-Z1  dny-£T  INf-LT unr-£t Aew-£1  ady-£T Jew-£T 994-4T  Uel-4T
1 1 [4
1
1 1
T
AON-LT  0-21  des-£1  8Bny-z1  Infr-£1 unf-2T AeN-LT  Hdy-£T JeW-ZT QR4-4T uer-£T
AON-£LT  P0O-LT  das-4T  @ny-LT  INM-LT unf-£T AeN-£T ady-ZT Jew-/T Qo4-4T  uef-LT
1 v ¥ v 1 €
r4 z 1 1 £
1 z z £
AON-LT  1O-L1  dos-4T  8Bny-£T  Inr-LT unf-/T AeN-£T  ady-ZT JeN-£T Q4-LT  uef-/T
S rd v

dg-a4 dwodu)
ucneqniulsy
uoneadsy

Jsuel] pauuepdun
adeweq N/1/4/1
puj Jaye DNy dins
eIsayisauy

s|elol
J8410

AgjeQ

J2oue)

ealy pay
pPsniwpy 40
wniay pauuedun
uno7) 333.1400U|
13O pauleay
uefiQ pauuejdun
Aadung

s|eyo)

2410

asnig

Jea)
Aya8aju) unys

s|ejop
aaiodw3-uopn
ashojdwy
ueRIsiyd
sjurejdwo)

s|ejol
* 49410



AON-LT

PO-LT

das-/1

any-£1

Inr-£1

unf-£1

Aen-£1

ady-£T

JBN-LT

q=4-/1

uer-/1

s|e10]
18430

paxoid Buunp fu
YINY

peay mm_O 123.1J00U|
Y3 0] uInlay

1easy /mdwo)
Yasig y¢z I/m voa
a3

s|e1o)
18110



Equipment/Supply Issues

Graphics for Quality Report  key

lanyary
Febuary T
March
April
May
lune ¥
Rrzdoaln ar Bitasr aqueg i
Falle Medication Errors
. 1
4 I |I I I | |I Vaprgh W WAAE Wheky  lemosmd Td R R T
At Mg s P Vi e Al g Tiiieal 1 F e tern Tas . P
Protudure & Tests Safety and Security
b d
1
' | ll | I
Vererg Tet Hearm o L preect  KITH g [T 5 ¥ l l
Tatest Lind - EaF el s BT etein HEF el Tt

Lamplarits ED
i r2
'
1
3 or
38 L)
5 03
i a:
v OCARAZM  Comaw/  Ratamta € Insomec a4a * v
—_— Lo i £9 plinrs can Buzh Trea Auad
SRy QOverall Trends
W
13
18 :m
1
¢5 |i l
[ l I
Urplanned Retwoed intomec Urpanted  OF  fydaies  Comisl  Eaby S UITR S By | J|
Gigen ORa Clunt  Brtwn Ademed 45 n a it 1
Agtrsthgiia
12
1
oz
L1
24
0z
o
Sy THAM Urstired  Apratcn Bertonatcn incempPe  Ciher (=T

atorind  Camags Tearst Py






ATTRCHMENT D

Mayers Memorial Hospital District Operations Board Report
Submitted by Ryan Harris, Director of Operations

June 2017

General

1.

June has been another busy month for the operations staff. We are currently working on
completing the acute and Fire Life & Safety plan of corrections by the deadline of June 23",
The building project is still on schedule with several meetings happening over the next
couple of weeks to continue the progress. Plant Operations and Maintenance is busy with
numerous facility projects in addition to grounds work and keeping our facility cool for
residents, patients, and employees during the hot weather. Information Technology is focused
on our Paragon 14 upgrade as well as several other projects. Qur Dietary staff is working on
inventory and completion of their plan of corrections. Environmental Services staff is
working on their plan of corrections and implementing a job board. I have also initiated a
monthly Director of Operations walk around of both facilities. The purpose of this walk
around is to ensure quality control as well as use Fire Life & Safety codes to ensure
compliance.

Hospital Expansion Project

1.

As of June 20" 2017 the Hospital Expansion Project is on schedule for our initial submission
of 100% of the construction documents to OSHPD on July 17" 2017 and a construction start
date of April 12" 2018. Louis, Travis, and I will be meeting with OSHPD on June 22™ 2017
to review our seismic compliance plan with them as well as go over our schedule to ensure
that we meet our June 2019 deadline.

Another milestone for the building project was met this month with the selection of the
Imaging Equipment vendor for the project. I sent an imaging equipment request for proposal
(RFP) to 5 vendors and we received 4 responses. The Medical Imaging Equipment
Committee evaluated all proposals in strict accordance with the evaluation criteria set forth in
the RFP. It was a unanimous decision and we all felt that Siemens provided the best
equipment and the best value. This award will include the R&F Room, Mobile X-Ray,
Mobile C-Arm, and Computerized Tomography (CT).

Louis, Tyler Davis of Porter Consulting and [ will be meeting with the McArthur Fire
department and Fall River Valley Community Services district to discuss our current 1000
GPM and the OSHPD requirement of 1500 GPM once the building is completed. We will be
discussing the fire department approval of the lower requirement before we open the new
building and how we will get the 1500 GPM once the building is opened.



Plant Operations, Maintenance, Other Construction Projects

1.

I have received two bids from Hat Creek Construction to replace the parking lot at the
Burney Annex. With their proximity to the project I felt that they would be able to give us a
competitive bid and a starting point in the process. | would like the board’s recommendation
before moving forward with a formal RFP process knowing now the associated cost.
Attachment A is the proposal for pulverizing and replacement. Attachment B is for removal
and replacement.

Windows and door skins have been ordered for the Skilled Nursing Refresh project at our
Fall River Campus. Materials lead-time and install is 6-8 weeks. Louis, Travis, and [ will be
meeting with Greenbough Design to review the final design and next steps on June 22™
2017.

We will also be meeting with Greenbough Design to review engineered design proposals for
the pharmacy project. I’ve attached the proposed timeline for this project to date
(Attachment C).

1 have also contracted Greenbough Design to do a scoping study for the Burney Physical
Therapy gym concept previously discussed. During this study they will look for elements of
the project that will take code compliant space in the Burney Annex and make it not
compliant.

The new fire doors at the Fall River Campus and storefront door for the East entrance going
into the Skilled Facility have a 3-4 week lead-time. ! am hoping to report this project
completed at the July Board meeting.

Once the new storefront door is installed we will be moving forward with the access controls
system implementation for exterior doors at the Fall River Campus. This will provide
additional security for our patients, residents and employees once completed,

With the rising temperatures and every seasonal change the age of our current HVAC
infrastructure comes to a forefront. Due to the issues caused by this our maintenance staff, as
well as outside contractors, are inundated with calls to repair heating and air conditioning
units. For this reason, I will be sending out an RFP to mechanical contractors to replace the
24 older units at our Fall River Campus. I will be requesting pricing for both a single phase
and multiple phase build out. The multiple phases will be replacing 6 units per year for 4
years. It has been my experience that this will have drastic energy savings for the district,
with a possible reduction of the number of units, as well as reducing the man-hours needed to
maintain this aging infrastructure.

Dietary

1.

As of June 23" 2017 our menu system and nutritional analysis implementation will be
complete. This project has been ongoing since 2012 and [ am very pleased to report its
completion.

Susan Garcia, Dietary Staff and I are currently working to complete inventory by the end of
the month.

Both employees enrolled in the CDM program have started the course work and have a target
completion of the course in 6-8 months.



Environmental Services

1. Sherry Rodriguez and I are currently developing a new project board for EVS staff to follow.
This will help to ensure all required and necessary tasks are completed in a timely fashion.
Implementation of this is scheduled for June 30 2017.

2. We are also working on completion of the EVS plan of correction by June 23" 2017.

Purchasing

1. Steve Sweet, Louis, Travis and I met with Dignity and Premier. This was a very beneficial
meeting. Premier has been working with us to ensure that we are signed up for all of the
appropriate GPO agreements with vendors and are providing us with the information of
vendors we may wish to switch to. This meeting covered expiring contracts, lab pricing,
pricing not linked to strategic vendors we use, group buys, IT product vendors, possible
HVAC group purchasing, and printer agreements. Upon completion of this review | am
hoping for a reduction in supply spending for FY 18,

2. Steve Sweet and his staff are also busy preparing for inventory.

Information Technology

1. We are proceeding with a new fax server. This will allow us to send faxes directly from our
computers as well as receive faxes directly to our email. This will greatly reduce downtime
due to issues with fax machines, as well as reduce missed faxes.

2. Once multiple quotes are obtained we will upgrade our vCenter server on the Mayers side to
be compatible with our EMR side. This will allow us to use both environments
together. vCenter server is a centralized management application that lets you manage virtual
machines centrally.

3. Please see attachment D. This is the timeline provided to us for our Paragon 14, Paragon
14.1 upgrades and obtaining our MU3 requirement.






4

BRRERR).
il K

F

g

W5 SPECTALIZE IN SATISFIED CUSTOMIRS”

June 14, 2017

Ryan Harris

Mayers Memorial Hospital
43563 State Highway 299 E
Fall River Mills, CA 96028

Re:  Proposal for pulverizing and replacing the Burney Annex parking lot

Thank you for allowing Hat Creek Construction and Materials, Inc. the opportunity to provide a
proposal for the above referenced project. Our proposal is based upon a site visit conducted by
James Folsom & Megan Young (Hat Creek Construction) and Ryan Harris (Mayers Memorial
Hospital)

Bid Item Pricing:

Unit

Iltem Description Quantity Unit Price Total

1 Mobilization 1 LS $25,372 | $25,372
Pulverize and Replace Parking

2 Lot 1 LS 5140,726 | $140,726

3 Striping 1 LS $5,301 $5,301
$171,399

Inclusions

» Total price includes all equipment, labor and materials necessary for the proposed project.

» Price includes pulverizing the existing asphalt and subgrade 10 an 8 inch depth. The re-
compaction and grading of the pulverized material and the placement of 2 inches of new
asphalt.

» Total price also includes the striping of the new parking lot

Exclusions - If requested, items excluded can be priced as an inclusion:

Tree removal or mitigation beyond paving area.

Price excludes importing or exporting material to made subgrade,

Design, engineering, staking, or surveying, and as-built drawings,

Bonds

Inspection, materials testing, permits, fees, and bonds.

SWPPP Plan or Installation of BMP’s.

Prime coat, fog seal, tack coat, or soil sterilization,

Anything not specifically included is considered excluded from this proposal.

YYVYVYYY VY

24339 Hwy 89 Norih, Bumey, CA 96013
Phone (888) 335-3501 ~ (530} 335-3501 ~ FAX (530} 335-3510
waw hatcreekconstnicton.com



aly, 1

BRI CREE

“WE SPECIALIZE IN SATISFIED CUSTOMIEERS”

Qualifications:

# Our proposal is based upon 8 hours per day, 5 days per week, Monday through Friday work
schedule. If work hours extend beyond our work schedule than revised pricing is required.

» Three weeks advanced notice required for scheduling.

This proposal is based upon mutually agreeable terms and a copy of this proposal shall be

wrilten in our contract.

Billing will be based off of actual square footage that is placed.

Payment terms: Net within 30 days of monthly invoices. In the evenl that legal action is

required for collection, Hat Creek Construction is entitled to 1.5% interest per month on all

unpaid balances plus attorney’s fees.

N

b o

Thank you again for this outstanding opportunity. If you have any questions, or if I can be of any
further assistance, please don't hesitate to call at (530) 335-5501. Please sign this proposal as
acceptance of our terms. We look forward to working with you on this project.

Sincerely,

Megan Young
Project Engineer

24339 FHwy 89 North, Bumey, CA 96013
Phone (888) 335-5501 ~ (530) 335-5501 ~ FAX (530) 335-5510
wwnw hatereckeonstruction.gom




W SPECIALIZE IN SATISFIED CUSTOMERS”

June 14, 2017

Ryan Harris

Mayers Memorial Hospital
43563 State Highway 299 E
Fall River Mills, CA 96028

Re:

Proposal to remove existing asphalt and replace with new aggregate base and asphalt

for the Burney Annex parking lot

Thank you for allowing Hat Creek Construction and Materials, Inc. the opportunity to provide a
proposal for the above referenced project. Our proposal is based upon a site visit conducted by
James Folsom & Megan Young (Hat Creek Construction) and Ryan Harris (Mayers Memorial

Hospital)
Bid Item Pricing:
Unit
Item Description Quantity Unit Price Total
1 Mobilization 1 LS $23,947 | $23,947
Grind out existing parking lot &
2 place new base rock & AC 1 LS $221,032 | $221,032
3 Striping 1 LS | $530 $5,301
$250,280
Inclusions
% Total price includes all equipment, labor and materials necessary for the proposed project.
7 Price includes grinding out and removing the existing asphalt and subgrade to an 8§ inch
depth.
» Placement and compaction of 6 inches of %™ Class 1} aggregate base rock
~ Placement and compaction of 2 inches of new asphalt
» Total price also includes the striping of the new parking lot

24339 Hwy 89 North, Burney, CA 96013
Phene (888} 335-3501 ~ (530} 335-5501 ~ FAX {530} 335-3510
www hatcreekconstrucnon.com



M&ﬁﬁﬁk

WL SPECIALEZE IN SATISFIED CUSTOMERS”

Exclusions - If requested, items excluded can be priced as an inclusion:

Tree removal or root mitigation beyond paving area.

Price excludes importing or exporting material to made subgrade.

Design, engineering, staking, or surveying, and as-built drawings.

Bonds

Inspection, materials testing, permits, fees, and bonds.

SWPPP Plan or Installation of BMP’s.

Prime coat, fog seal, tack coat, or soil sterilization.

Anything not specifically included is considered excluded from this proposal.

YW VY NYYYY

Qualifications:

Our proposal is based upon 8 hours per day, 5 days per week, Monday through Friday work
schedule. If work hours extend beyond our work schedule than revised pricing is required.
Three weeks advanced notice required for scheduling.
This proposal is based upon mutually agreeable terms and a copy of this proposal shall be
written in our contract.
Billing will be based off of actual square footage that is placed.
Payment terms: Net within 30 days of monthly invoices. In the event that legal action is
required for collection, Hat Creck Construction is entitled to 1.5% interest per month on all
unpaid balances plus attorney’s fees.

¥

¥ W

Y v

Thank you again for this outstanding opportunity. If you have any questions, or if | can be of any
further assistance, please don’t hesitate to call at (530) 335-5501. Please sign this proposal as
acceptance of our terms. We look forward to working with you on this project.

Sincerely,

Megan Young
Project Engineer

24339 Hwy 89 North, Burney, CA 96013
Phone (888) 335-5501 ~ (530) 335-5501 ~ FAX (5330) 333-5510
www.b'i, tereckconsiruction.com



uedy Reywy | sbed LI oy
E Nuo-ysang  SERETREETERRTTe Ayuo-voyEmg FTL TG -l Y S— Ausiung
k| Apo-yels D ASE) [EnuEy L SUOILAPN reUapey . auoisapn
4 wugpesa @ o A renueyy Arpurung supey|  EERSEERTESOR ey ey wis uerierouay Aaeuieyd
——— ssasbaly ey A Uty OIS DUPRY] A, & & 3 paud T yseL
J 67 1/ vopy glgzmen)  shepoc UOHEUILITIOE) (105010 ot
U 82 BLIGZS voKy gzimeny  siepol HOPIYIT 62
L] BZ BHS TR Vo gLzIGENL  sAEpo) W0 950P OdHSO 14
8T 031978 VoW nEssnL  slepor INDITO|D PUT WOHEIHUGD [+
j SZTOMIIRYON  GLTanL  shepos woponnswoy  EE g2
J 2 QLAGIT VoY QUEZL SNL  shwpoe Buwppig 7
T TZQI2Z vow Bz voyy  slepg [eAQAdR JaHSO E
_“_ TZOLTTL vowy QUTTA WOl Aep FIMIEIEG JARNOD BY) SIAQ €2
Fhu'v 1TeLANL 1 AL py  slep? AIIUIYIEG JI|UNOD DU Jaro Jo) Anedand w
—ai] BZEULML PO K YL sheps Tpamnbas gty GdHSO ol puods Iz
T... 81 UIDLA PO LRI Paps  Aep L SHIUAID SAEIN 0z
gy o) jroll
J (TR VTR LT won  shep I 05 OdHSO Bodn PISEE) MMAL CdHSQ PUTIIS 8l
LV LRz vd amzL e Atp ) JenAugnS poyIYIeq yErg gl
j 9L LILTL ML Lwznipnd - shepoy SIUMMND GIHSO 0) pupdsoy 1
SLIMEZALRUL  LLZZIG PRM Sep 2 AIHSO WAy SIUsURGS dAaday ]
F] [RU0US 9 PNCD SAMIUNL AMAR)
LI ONL Lm0z P wlep Sy P 20y Qi 6 osdoad 1} i OdHSO 84 4
=y TV LHBIG O0L LisueenL  Aep) BOISSALGNS [ERUY ”l
i £y RMELIL O susan)  siewos [eAOIdthy/MeiARY JHEO EL
_.wu L1 LU LG vow Limimuom  Aep ) {epdsoH) yo ubis @3 z
—_—, ol LSS I Lisuoy  sieppt AR 02 %00} "
e [ FAY{YCAIE] LRIR N slepps abeyIed UALNIOP UOMENGSLCD MIEdalg 0t
Lirsi voN Lz vow  sAep gy SHUIWNID() UBRINNSVOD §
_ﬁ’ LLvRzend LI slep? Yo uls 0Q []
-, LU PRAM F137: LTS skep gL (mudsop) masas 00 %004 I3
_..l_ ¥ LLILID PO Huzymn  siepop wieyand juoundogamop ulisap aedely ]
= | L5 TiE] urnyL  siepy wawdaojsasg ubsseg s
_|_|IH|.._ EZHBLY M PV LU TR T ) eydsop} Maval g5 %001 r
J | LML POM LUz YL hep of abexaed Qg aedary E ¢
Aee—e—h UL PO Lhgrengy  dlep gy ubisaq) IEweydg 4
: LUV P Limgiy won  shep g vopewuuseg sdods paslory B
LSMSLIMWLEMSELIJNLEMSLIWLSESMSLINLSMS L INLSMS L JdNLSMS 1AWl smsl o
L BZINGL, "L YL, 'E gL, "9 ANV, R ME,CEIRL )L Q3L Y e UK, "LE 390G, "L AL, T2 1L P2 d2), A2 Br L DE el Z I r unt ), Reye ) e vl "ZL el CZL 4R, 5L UL ss0eseaepaid ysand g veneing PIURH ¥3B1 a
TUWIIHIS AYYNINM Y ] Ud - [epdsOH ey sialeny

utisag yinoquaarg







g o

NOSSTEW

SYIUOW §L

WS LT M3IN 13N WAL0TU0

aTfr/14gand

uiImmng T Il
1x3am g
AWy
WD)

FTOZ7 HID 1Y Jabany
¥oogtucdees i

fnjoite

L R
A TN
Surstru 1o pyng

4TET-IT/E

LEZ/OT- %6
Tgamy
1IET

£1Q¥1 ualeicy

=L T/iman
S § 1

VTR I [T
F10rI01E7 7] uodesey

133am 11
53dunderey

aRs 2y w9y pajabiog
TS LT WU R .’.

L1027 1sunung (ahmy)
WO Ll ucheey *

9z TS

Liezielir P
trtudewy W

04 §1 1048 1w

Hid 9L 0N Jstd jo woriniiny - 10T wolemy .
PaLHAN LTH "SERUIU eI NG MAN
v 1w gt sadomp 6393 -
[R30d 4InOs D)
U0 Wou) WWHITD 01 SULCG) HWPT-Ixd puas  Apqy -
SXALNE GO YINO RYL [FHIWU UBHEIND 0 I IdY =
Suplersaw Ippald IWHITd -
sdde iws ao) parqrus unly .
un{peaniyucy
ury .
galersig
PIANGAI S SYTT 40 $2AAL JUBLYIP JO HOTINPANY
pasn3o) pp 5.
o a1y A put
10 "I “RRNP LUUe) Aedy alunp jo ey -
)
SAI0N ENW/S LT LoD U0 f1YT welered

pur (R ]

"I 1024 HYY H0J PP 2Ie S3ameaw [enutw

Aurw moy wo ey 03 p3ay  Supud Bupuag “Lawdig)
wognges Juruodas 1 MU ot Fury q
ZIVA WAL WD) 3AQW O) P33U LA f NI 40) pasnbas wipga-

1¥ld fm Ao
sy 20 12 v3re S3anbaI [y ld “uoniulajua
1018 403 :nyendis FUpuad Lrenue 200N L - 0 YOW -

IS9P TWTd = ey udy e o) BA0W 20 Bus 043 ey ‘v
*IUOIIND N LR ENIA T PPRiddn 1y d M BIRSR o) pabu -
B/ ua Paloud PRI pUR UOTLISA

B5LclaTr] Sl PTO| ) PREY LHAHE i G UC Y5 10 Uorte
PAPALS BUL PRty T4 s 1D mBU Z1/E PA0 30 OG-
anp-ad

e

Trid/a ol o3 D4 oy

TPl 0 URTON/01 S L/8 PUY O w1d 200 ¥0 TT/2 pragedde 100 9/v-

LUIET/E PAUlS SLIBNU0 S0 ENA “50d1 71 pl wodvied

T 1D PIRD AU SH Sl
anbss oo uslipws
mau mpeey q sy 830p suprol D yid
200 5o pekord weeriumop rtanbas-a1 0L paey e yed oy

P ool O 1 FNED e CLUNID BASUINL MH O ¥ T woT el - ST

[A1701.8 4]
05 LT WIEI IO

¥

a3 S - Wd PN O r] uodesed
oLt UIEIH - O FLd 40) Wd STAUIpESY -

-£1/5/5 o) 52| ON/SLAT LN TY

L7
vo
Qg uciesmy

[hmpsndss wad gry) £ 30025 9
slelzlz]z Bl lzlzlzizlzlz e e lsle B e bl s (2 s sl L el ol bl L 2l ol sl S Jda. i AARRRAREE el bl
SEEGIERIEREREEIEEEEEFEEEE|ZIEEEE|HEE elglel: wﬁm,mm_zmmuﬁummumm ":ummmmmmmuumumumwummm_.m.”mm”umnm..mmmmmum_.mmmmm%mmm"mmmm
HEHHHEEHE 3 HEHHHHE A HEHEEEREEEREEEEEEEEEEEER S ERE REEERER B cEEREEEEEERE R EEBEEEEEEEEE
HEEH HEHBEHEEEE gl [&] |50 1] [E] o won | 10 s b W we | owew | ea W o | W aa | son | e an onv wt wne o
Lot L 1502 13 9107 43







ATRcHMEVT &
Valerie Lake!

From: Travis Lakey

Sent: Wednesday, June 21, 2017 8:23 AM

To: Valerie Lakey

Subject: FW:. Mayers Memarial Hospital District 2017 COPs
Attachments: MMHDDistList.pdf

From: Brian Quint [mailto:bquint@qtlip.com}

Sent: Tuesday, June 20, 2017 6:06 PM

To: Anita Lopez <anita.lopez@ca.usda.gov>; Michael Colbert <Mike.Colbert@ca.usda.gov>; Travis Lakey
<tlakey@mayersmemorial.com>; Bill Morton <bmorton@munifinance.com:; Stefan Morton
<smorton@munifinance.com>

Cc: Blythe Fleet <bfleet@qtlip.com>

Subject: Mayers Memorial Hospital District 2017 COPs

TO ALL MEMBERS OF THE ATTACHED DISTRIBUTION LIST:

Re: $9,900,000 Certificates of Participation, Series A (2017 Capital Improvement Project) Evidencing Direct, Undivided Fractional
Interests of the Owners Thereof in Series A Lease Payments to be Made by the Mayers Memorial Hospital District, as a portion of the
Rental for Certain Property Pursuant to a Lease Agreement with the Public Property Financing Corporation of California

Re: $4,300,000 Certificates of Participation, Series B (2017 Capital Improvement and Refinancing Project) Evidencing Direct, Undivided
Fractional Interests of the Owners Thereof in Series B Lease Payments to be Made by the Mayers Memorial Hospital District, as a
portion of the Rental for Certain Property Pursuant to a Lease Agreement with the Public Property Financing Corporation of California

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Initial drafts of the legal documents prepared in connection with the above-referenced matters have been posted to our firm website

and can be downloaded at the following link: {_
e TE— +# Resowhms are prowted v packet.
hitp:/fwww. glllp.com/MayersMemaorialHospitalDistrict. html Einel Su op W% Aoe UM 7% here .

Please transmit any comments or corrections to me (preferably by email of marked pages) as soon as possible.
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.
Very truly yours,

Brian D. Quint

Brian D. Quint

Quint & Thimmig LLP

900 Larkspur Landing Circle, Suite 270
Larkspur, CA 94939-1726

{415} 925-4200 (Phone)

{415) 925-4201 (Fax)

{415) 272-8100 (Cell}

bitp://www.gtllp.com

NOTICE: This email, including any attachments hereto, has been transmitted by an attorney and may contain information that is privileged and/or confidential. This
email is solely for the use of its original intended recipient. If this email has been forwarded 1o you, or if this email has been sent or delivered lo you in error, please
be advised thal any review, use, dissemination, distribution, printing or copying of this email, or any atlachments hereto, is strictly prohibited. if you are not the
original intended recipient of this email, please nolify the original sender immediately by relum email. Therealter, please delete this message, including any
attachments hereto, from your system. Please also destroy all printouts that may have been made of this email or any attachments hereto. Thank you in advance
for your cooperation.

1






Quint & Thimmig LLP

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
(Shasta County, California)
2017 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
(Shasta County, California)
General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2010, Series B (2017}

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
(Shasta County, California)
Certificates of Participation, Series A
{2017 Capital Improvement Project)

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
(Shasta County, California)
Certificates of Participation, Series B
(2017 Capital Improvementand Refinancing Project)

Distribution List

6/20/17

BISTRICT

Mr. Travis Lakey

Chief Financial Officer

Mayers Memorial Hospital District
43563 State Highway 299 East

Fall River Mills, CA 96028-9787
(530)336-5511

Hake y@maye rsme morial.com

INVESTOR

Mr.]. Michael Colbert
Community Programs Specialist
Rural Development

U.S. Department of Agriculture
221 West 8th Street

Alturas, CA 96101
(530)233-4137

mike colbe rl@cansdagov

Ms. Anita Lopez

Community Programs Director
Rural Development

US. Department of Agriculture
430 G Street

Davis, CA 95616-4169

(530) 792-5822

anitalope z@causda.gov

2017 LESSOR

Mr. William A. Morton

Mr. Stefan Morton

Public Property Financing Corporation
of California

¢/o Municipal Finance Corporation
2945 Townsgate Road, Suite 200
Westlake Village, CA 91361
(805)719-1236 (B. Morton)

(8035) 719-1237 (S. Morton)

bmorto n@muni finance com

smo rion@muni fi nance .com

2011 GOBPAYING AGENT

Ms. Agnes P. Obando

Vice President

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.
Corporate Trust Services

400 South Hope Street, Suite 500

Los Angeles, CA 90071

{213) 630-6270

{213) 630.6480 (Fax)

agnes.obando@buymellon.com

2011 COP TRUSTEE

Ms. Michelle A Knutson
Assistant Vice President

U.S. Bank National Association
101 North 1st Ave, Suite 1600
Phoenix, AZ 85003

(415) 677-3597

michelle knutsonFusbank.com

BOND COUNSEL

Brian D. Quint, Esq.

Ms. C. Blythe Fleet

Assistant to Mr. Quint

Quint & Thimmig LLP

900 Larkspur Landing Circle, Suite 270
Larkspur, CA 949391726
(415)925-4200

(415)925-4201 (Fax)

bquimt@qtlip.com

bflec t@qtllp.com

13036.04/05/06 /07






Quint & Thimmig LLP 04/16/17
[Refunding of 2011 General Obligation Bonds] 05/17/17
06/19/17

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 20/7-0§&
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MAYERS MEMORIAL

HOSPITAL DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE
DISTRICT'S 2017 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS

Adopted June 28, 2017

13036.07



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE]
DEFINITIONS; AUTHORITY

Section 1.01. Definitions 2
Section 1.02. Authority for this Resolution 4

ARTICLED

THE 2017 REFUNDING BONDS

Section 2.01. Authorization 5
Section 2.02. Terms of 2017 Refunding Bonds 5
Section 2.03. Redemption 6
Section 2.04. Form of 2017 Refunding Bonds 7
Section 2.05. Execution of 2017 Refunding Bonds 7
Section 2.06. Transfer of Bonds 7
Section 2.07. Exchange of 2017 Refunding Bonds 8
Section 2.08. Bond Register 8
Section 2.09. Temporary 2017 Refunding Bonds 8
Section 2.10. 2017 Refunding Bonds Mutilated, Lost, Destroyed or Stolen 8

ARTICLEM

ISSUE OF 2017 REFUNDING BONDS; APPLICATION OF 2017 REFUNDING BOND PROCEEDS;
SECURITY FOR THE 2017 REFUNDING BONDS

Section 3.01. Issuance, Award and Delivery of 2017 Refunding Bonds 10
Section 3.02. Funds and Accounts 10
Section 3.03. Application of Proceeds of Sale of 2017 Refunding Bonds 10
Section 3.04. Security for the 2017 Refunding Bonds...ccsnsenen 10

ARTICLE IV

SALE OF BONDS; OFFICIAL ACTION

Section 4.01. Sale of the 2017 Refunding Bonds 12
Section 4.02, Official Action 12

ARTICLEV

COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT

Section 5.01. Punctual Payment 13
Section 5.02. Extension of Time for Payment 13
Section 5.03. Protection of Security and Rights of the Owner 13
Section 5.04. Further Assurances. 13
Section 5.05. Tax Covenants 13

ARTICLE VI

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF BONDOWNERS

Section 6.01. Events of Default 15
Section 6.02. Other Remedies of OQwner 15
Section 6.03. Non-Waiver 15

Section 6.04. Remedies Not Exclusive..... 16




ARTICLE VIl
SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTIONS

Section 7 .01. Supplemental Resolutions Effective Without Consent of the Owner 17
Section 7.02. Supplemental Resolutions Effective With Consent to the Owner o b
ARTICLE Vil
MISCELLANEOUS
Section 8.01. Benefits of Resolution Limited to Parties 18
Section 8.02. Execution of Documents and Proof of Ownerhip by Owner.. 18
Section 8.03. Waiver of Personal Liability 18
Section 8.04. Partial Invalidi 18
Section 8.05. Effective Date of Resolution 18

EXHIBIT A: FORM OF 2017 REFUNDING BOND

-1i-



MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. ____

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MAYERS MEMORIAL
HOSPITAL DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE
DISTRICT'S 2017 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Mayers Memorial Hospital
District (the “District”), as follows:

WHEREAS, the District has heretofore issued its Mayers Memorial Hospital District
(Shasta County, California) General Obligation Bonds, 2010 Election, 2011 Series A (the “2011
Bonds”), in the original principal amount of $5,000,886.35, issued for authorized hospital
purposes;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Articles 9 and 11 of Chapter 3 (commencing with section
53550) of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code (the “Act”), the District is
empowered to issue general obligation refunding bonds;

WHEREAS, the District has determined that it is in the best interests of the District to
refund, on a current basis, the current interest portion of the 2011 Bonds (the “Refunded 2011
Bonds”), so long as there are gross savings to be realized by the District with respect to the
Refunded 2011 Bonds as a result of the issuance of the refunding bonds;

WHEREAS, the Board wishes at this time to authorize the issuance and sale of its
Mayers Memorial Hospital District (Shasta County, California) 2017 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds (the “2017 Refunding Bonds”) for the such purpose;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Mayers
Memorial Hospital District, as follows:



ARTICLEI
DEFINITIONS; AUTHORITY

Section 1.01. Definitions. The terms defined in this Section 1.01, as used and
capitalized herein, shall, for all purposes of this Resolution, have the meanings ascribed to
them below, unless the context clearly requires some other meaning.

“Act” means Articles 9 and 11 of Chapter 3 (commencing with section 53550) of
Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code, as is in effect on the date of adoption
hereof and as amended hereafter.

" Articles,” " Sections” and other subdivisions are to the corresponding Articles, Sections
or subdivisions of this Resolution, and the words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder” and other
words of similar import refer to this Resolution as a whole and not to any particular Article,
Section or subdivision hereof.

“Authorized Investments” means any investments permitted by law to be made with
moneys belonging to, or in the custody of, the District, but only to the extent that the same are
acquired at Fair Market Value.

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the District.

“Bond Counsel” means any attomey or firm of attomeys nationally recognized for
expertise in rendering opinions as to the legality and tax exempt status of securities issued by
public entities.

“Bond Register” means the registration books for the 2017 Refunding Bonds maintained
by the District.

“Closing Date” means the date upon which there is an exchange of the 2017 Refunding
Bonds for the proceeds representing the purchase of the 2017 Refunding Bonds by the Original
Owner.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as in effect on the date of issuance of
the 2017 Refunding Bonds or (except as otherwise referenced herein) as it may be amended to
apply to obligations issued on the date of issuance of the 2017 Refunding Bonds, together with
applicable temporary and final regulations promulgated, and applicable official public
guidance published, under the Code.

“Costs of Issuance” means all items of expense directly or indirectly reimbursable to the
District relating to the issuance, execution and delivery of the 2017 Refunding Bonds including,
but not limited to, filing and recording costs, settlement costs, printing costs, reproduction and
binding costs, legal fees and charges, fees for execution, transportation and safekeeping of the
2017 Refunding Bonds and charges and fees in connection with the foregoing.

“County” means Shasta County, California.

“Debt Service” means the scheduled amount of interest and amortization of principal
payable on the 2017 Refunding Bonds during the period of computation, excluding amounts
scheduled during such period which relate to principal which has been retired before the
beginning of such period.



“District Representative” means the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer,
or any other person authorized by resolution of the Board of the District to act on behalf of the
District with respect to this Resolution and the 2017 Refunding Bonds.

“Fair Market Value” means the price at which a willing buyer would purchase the
investment from a willing seller in a bona fide, arm’s length transaction (determined as of the
date the contract to purchase or sell the investment becomes binding) if the investment is
traded on an established securities market (within the meaning of section 1273 of the Code)
and, otherwise, the term “Fair Market Value” means the acquisition price in a bona fide arm’s
length transaction (as referenced above) if (i) the investment is a certificate of deposit that is
acquired in accordance with applicable regulations under the Code, (ii) the investment is an
agreement with specifically negotiated withdrawal or reinvestment provisions and a
specifically negotiated interest rate (for example, a guaranteed investment contract, a forward
supply contract or other investment agreement) that is acquired in accordance with applicable
regulations under the Code, (iii) the investment is a United States Treasury Security—State
and Local Government Series that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations of the
United States Bureau of Public Debt, or (iv) any commingled investment fund in which the
District and related parties do not own more than a ten percent (10%) beneficial interest therein
if the return paid by the fund is without regard to the source of the investment.

“Federal  Securities” means United States Treasury Bonds, bills or certificates of
indebtedness or those for which the faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the
payment of principal and interest.

“Interest Payment Date” means with respect to interest, March 1 and September 1 of
each year commencing on March 1, 2018, and with respect to principal, September_1, of each
year commencing on September 1, 2018.

“Quistanding” means, when used as of any particular time with reference to 2017
Refunding Bonds, all 2017 Refunding Bonds except:

(a) 2017 Refunding Bonds theretofore canceled by the District or surrendered to the
District for cancellation;

(b) 2017 Refunding Bonds paid or deemed to have been paid within the meaning of
Section 9.02 hereof; and

(c) 2017 Refunding Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other 2017 Refunding
Bonds shall have been authorized, executed, issued and delivered by the District pursuant to
this Resolution.

“Owner” means the United States of America, acting through the Rural Housing
Service, the registered owner of the 2017 Refunding Bonds.

“Record Date” means the 15th day of the month preceding each Interest Payment Date.

“Refunded 2011 Bonds” means the current interest portion of the 2011 Bonds to be
refunded from the proceeds of the 2017 Refunding Bonds.

“Regulations” means temporary and permanent regulations promulgated under the
Code.

“Resolution” means this Resolution, including all amendments hereto and supplements
hereof which are duly adopted by the Board from time to time in accordance herewith.

3-



“Supplemental Resolution” means any resolution supplemental to or amendatory of this
Resolution, adopted by the District in accordance with Article VIIT hereof.

“Treasurer-Tax Collector” means the County Treasurer-Tax Collector.

“2011 Bonds” means the Mayers Memorial Hospital District (Shasta County,
Califomnia) General Obligation Bonds, 2010 Election, 2011 Series A, in the original principal
amount of $5,000,886.35, issued for authorized healthcare purposes.

“2017 Refunding Bonds” means the Mayers Memorial Hospital District (Shasta County,
California) 2017 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, issued and at any time Outstanding
pursuant to this Resolution.

“Written Request of the District” means an instrument in writing signed by the District
Representative or by any other officer of the District duly authorized by the District and listed
on a Written Request of the District for that purpose.

Section 1.02. Authority for this Resolution. This Resolution is entered into pursuant to
the provisions of the Act.



ARTICLEII

THE 2017 REFUNDING BONDS

Section 2.01. Authorization. 2017 Refunding Bonds are hereby authorized to be issued
by the District under and subject to the terms of the Act and this Resolution. The principal
amount of the 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be $4,574,000, being the amount required to
provide for the redemption of the Refunded 2011 Bonds on September 15, 2017, and to pay
the Costs of Issuance. This Resolution constitutes a continuing agreement with the Owner
issued or to be issued hereunder and then Outstanding to secure the full and final payment of
principal of and the interest on all 2017 Refunding Bonds which may from time to time be
executed and delivered hereunder, subject to the covenants, agreements, provisions and
conditions herein contained. The 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be designated the “Mayers
Memorial Hospital District (Shasta County, California) 2017 General Obligation Refunding
Bonds.”

Section 2.02. Terms of 2017 Refunding Bonds.

(a} Form; Numbering. The 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be issued as one fully registered
2017 Refunding Bond, without coupons, in the aggregate principal amount thereof, maturing
in the September 1, 2047. The 2017 Refunding Bonds shall not be (i) assigned a rating by any
rating agency, (ii) registered with The Depository Trust Company or any other securities
depository, (iii) issued pursuant to any type of offering document or official statement, or (iv)
assigned a CUSIP number by Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Service Bureau.

(b) Date of 2017 Refunding Bonds. The 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be dated as of the
Closing Date.

(d) Interest. The 2017 Refunding Bonds shall bear interest at the rate of 3.250% per
annum, payable semi-annually on each Interest Payment Date. Interest on the 2017 Refunding
Bonds shall be computed on the basis of a year of 365 days and actual days elapsed.

Each 2017 Refunding Bond shall bear interest from the Payment Date next preceding
the date of registration and authentication thereof unless (i) it is registered and authenticated
as of an Payment Date, in which event it shall bear interest from such date, or (ii) it is
registered and authenticated prior to an Payment Date and after the close of business on the
fifteenth day of the month preceding such Payment Date, in which event it shall bear interest
from such Payment Date, or (iii) it is registered and authenticated prior to February 15, 2018,
in which event it shall bear interest from the date described in paragraph (b) of this Section
2.02; provided, however, that if at the time of authentication of a 2017 Refunding Bond, interest
is in default thereon, such 2017 Refunding Bond shall bear interest from the Payment Date to
which interest has previously been paid or made available for payment thereon.

(d) Payment. Principal of and interest on the 2017 Refunding Bonds (including the final
interest payment upon maturity or earlier redemption) will be paid through the Pre-
Authorized Debt Payment Process, to be established by the District and approved by the
Assignee prior to the Closing Date. Each semiannual payment of interest shall be in the
amount of one half of the anoual amount of interest due,




Section 2.03. Redemption.

(a) Optional Redemption. The 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be subject to optional
redemption prior to their stated maturity date in whole or in part on any date at a redemption
price equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to such date.

(b) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be subject to

mandatory sinking fund redemption on each September 1, commencing September 1, 2018, to
and including September 1, 2047, as follows:

Sinking Fund Principal Sinking Fund Principal
Redemption Date Amounttobe Redemption Date Amounttobe
(September.1) Redeemed (September 1) Redeemed
2018 $92000 2033 $149,000
2019 23000 2034 154,000
2020 28,000 2035 159.000
2021 102,000 2036 164,000
2022 105,000 2037 169,000
202 108,000 2038 175000
2024 112,000 2039 181,000
202 115,000 2040 187,000
2026 115,000 2041 133000
2027 123,000 2042 199,000
202 127,000 2043 205,000
2029 131,000 2044 212,000
2030 135000 2045 219,000
2031 140,000 2046 226,000
2032 144,000 20478 236,000

tMaturity

If some but not all of the 2017 Refunding Bonds have been redeemed pursuant to the
preceding subsection (a) of this Section 2.03, the aggregate principal amount of the 2017
Refunding Bonds to be redeemed in each year pursuant to this subsection (b) shall be reduced
on a pro rata basis in integral multiples of $1,000, as shall be designated pursuant to written
notice filed by the District with the Owner.

(c) Notice of Optional Redemption. The District shall mail (by first class mail) notice of
any redemption to the Owner at least thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60) days prior to the
proposed redemption date; provided, however, that neither failure to receive any such notice so
mailed nor any defect therein shall affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of
such 2017 Refunding Bonds or the cessation of the accrual of interest thereon. Such notice shall
state the date of the notice, the redemption date, the redemption place and the redemption
amount, giving notice also that further interest on such 2017 Refunding Bonds will not accrue
from and after the redemption date.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of any optional redemption of the 2017
Refunding Bonds, the notice of redemption shall state that the redemption is conditioned upon
sufficient moneys to redeem the 2017 Refunding Bonds being available on the scheduled
redemption date, and that the optional redemption shall not occur if, by no later than the
scheduled redemption date, sufficient moneys to redeem the 2017 Refunding Bonds have not
been identified by the District. In the event the District does not identify sufficient funds by the
scheduled optional redemption date to so redeem the 2017 Refunding Bonds to be optionally
redeemed, the District shall send written notice to the Owner to the effect that the redemption




did not occur as anticipated, and the 2017 Refunding Bonds for which notice of optional
redemption was given shall remain Qutstanding for all purposes.

Notice of redemption shall not be required in connection with mandatory sinking fund
redemption.

(d) Partial Redemption of 2017 Refunding Bonds. In the event only a portion of the 2017
Refunding Bonds is called for redemption, then upon surrender of such 2017 Refunding Bond
the District shall execute and deliver to the Owner, at the expense of the District, a new 2017
Refunding Bond in aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the 2017
Refunding Bond to be redeemed. 2017 Refunding Bonds need not be presented for mandatory
sinking fund redemptions.

(e) Effect of Redemption. From and after the date fixed for redemption, if funds available
for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 2017 Refunding Bonds so called for
redemption shall have been duly provided, such 2017 Refunding Bonds so called shall cease to
be entitled to any benefit under this Resolution other than the right to receive payment of the
redemption price, and no interest shall accrue thereon from and after the redemption date
specified in such notice. All 2017 Refunding Bonds redeemed pursuant to this Section 2.03
shall be canceled and shall be destroyed by the District.

Section 2.04. Form of 2017 Refunding Bonds. The 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be
substantially in the form, with necessary or appropriate variations, omissions and insertions,
as permitted or required by this Resolution, as are set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.

Section 2.05. Execution of 2017 Refunding Bonds. The 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be
executed on behalf of the District by the facsimile signatures of the President of its Board and
its Clerk who are in office on the date of adoption of this Resolution or at any time thereafter.
If any officer whose signature appears on any 2017 Refunding Bond ceases to be such officer
before delivery of the 2017 Refunding Bonds to the Owner, such signature shall nevertheless be
as effective as if the officer had remained in office until the delivery of the 2017 Refunding
Bonds to the Original Owner. Any 2017 Refunding Bond may be signed and attested on behalf
of the District by such persons as at the actual date of the execution of such 2017 Refunding
Bond shall be the proper officers of the District although at the nominal date of such 2017
Refunding Bond any such person shall not have been such officer of the District.

Section 2.06. Transfer of Bonds.

{(a) The registration of Bonds may, in accordance with their terms, be transferred in
whole or in part, upon the Bond Register by the person in whose name it is registered, in person
or by his attomey duly authorized in writing upon surrender of the 2017 Refunding Bonds for
cancellation at the Principal Office, accompanied by delivery of a written instrument of
transfer in a form approved by the District, duly executed. Whenever the 2017 Refunding
Bonds shall be surrendered for registration of transfer, the District shall execute and deliver a
Bond for like aggregate principal amount. The District may require the payment by the
Bondowner requesting such transfer of any tax or other governmental charge required to be
paid with respect to such transfer. The District shall not be required to transfer (i) the 2017
Refunding Bonds during the period between the date fifteen (15) days prior to the date of
selection of Bonds for redemption and such date of selection, or (ii) any Bonds selected for
redemption.

(b) Ownership of the 2017 Refunding Bonds may be transferred in whole or in part but
only to a person that the Bondowner reasonably believes is either:



(A) a qualified institutional buyer within the meaning of Rule 144A
promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

(B) subject to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, an
accredited investor as defined in section 501(a){1), (2), (3) or (7) of Regulation D
promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

(C) a trust, partnership, custodial arrangement or similar entity, interests in
which are offered and sold in a private placement or limited offering only to qualified
institutional buyers or, subject to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, accredited investors; or

(D) an affiliate of the Original Owner.

in each case that executes and delivers to the District an investor letter in substantially the
form attached hereto as Exhibit B; provided, however, if transferred in part, such transfer shall
not be to more than five transferees and in amounts less than $500,000.

Section 2.07. Exchange of 2017 Refunding Bonds. 2017 Refunding Bonds may be
exchanged at the Principal Office for a like aggregate principal amount of 2017 Refunding
Bonds of authorized denominations and of the same maturity. The District shall require the
payment by the Owner requesting such exchange of any tax or other governmental charge
required to be paid with respect to such exchange.

No exchanges of 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be required to be made (a) fifteen days
prior to the date established by the District for selection of 2017 Refunding Bonds for
redemption or (b) with respect to a 2017 Refunding Bond after such 2017 Refunding Bond has
been selected for redemption.

Section 2.08. Bond Register. The District shall keep or cause to be kept sufficient books
for the registration and transfer of the 2017 Refunding Bonds, which shall at all times be open
to inspection by the District upon reasonable notice; and, upon presentation for such purpose,
the District shall, under such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, register or transfer or
cause to be registered or transferred, on said books, 2017 Refunding Bonds as herein before
provided.

Section 2.09. Temporary 2017 Refunding Bonds. The 2017 Refunding Bonds may be
initially issued in temporary form exchangeable for definitive 2017 Refunding Bonds when
ready for delivery. The temporary 2017 Refunding Bonds may be printed, lithographed or
typewritten, shall be of such denominations as may be determined by the District, and may
contain such reference to any of the provisions of this Resolution as may be appropriate. Every
temporary 2017 Refunding Bond shall be executed by the District upon the same conditions
and in substantially the same manner as the definitive 2017 Refunding Bonds. If the District
issues temporary 2017 Refunding Bonds it will execute and furnish definitive 2017 Refunding
Bonds without delay, and thereupon the temporary 2017 Refunding Bonds may be
surrendered, for cancellation, in exchange therefor at the District and the District shall deliver
in exchange for such temporary 2017 Refunding Bonds an equal aggregate principal amount of
definitive 2017 Refunding Bonds of authorized denominations. Until so exchanged, the
temporary 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be entitled to the same benefits pursuant to this
Resolution as definitive 2017 Refunding Bonds executed and delivered hereunder.

Section 2.10. 2017 Refunding Bonds Mutilated, Lost, Destroyed or Stolen. If the 2017
Refunding Bond shall become mutilated the District, at the expense of the Owner, shall execute
and deliver, a new 2017 Refunding Bond in exchange and substitution for the 2017 Refunding

8-



Bond so mutilated, but only upon surrender to the District of the 2017 Refunding Bond so
mutilated. Every mutilated 2017 Refunding Bond so surrendered to the District shall be
canceled by it. If any 2017 Refunding Bond shall be lost, destroyed or stolen, evidence of such
loss, destruction or theft may be submitted to the District and, if such evidence be satisfactory
to the District and indemnity satisfactory to it shall be given, the District, at the expense of the
Owner, shall execute and deliver, a new 2017 Refunding Bond of like maturity and principal
amount in lieu of and in substitution for the 2017 Refunding Bond so lost, destroyed or stolen.
The District may require payment of a sum not exceeding the actual cost of preparing each
new 2017 Refunding Bond issued under this Section 2.07 and of the expenses which may be
incurred by the District in connection therewith. Any 2017 Refunding Bond issued under the
provisions of this Section 2.07 in lieu of any 2017 Refunding Bond alleged to be lost, destroyed
or stolen shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation on the part of the District
whether or not the 2017 Refunding Bond so alleged to be lost, destroyed or stolen be at any
time enforceable by anyone, and shall be equally and proportionately entitled to the benefits of
this Resolution with all other 2017 Refunding Bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution.



ARTICLE III

ISSUE OF 2017 REFUNDING BONDS; APPLICATION OF 2017 REFUNDING BOND
PROCEEDS; SECURITY FOR THE 2017 REFUNDING BONDS

Section 3.01. Issuance, Award and Delivery of 2017 Refunding Bonds. At any time
after the execution of this Resolution the District may issue and deliver the 2017 Refunding

Bonds, subject to the savings requirements set forth in Section 4.01.

The District Representatives shall be, and are hereby, directed to cause the 2017
Refunding Bonds to be printed, signed and delivered to the Owner on receipt of the purchase
price therefor and upon performance of the conditions contained herein.

Section 3.02. Funds and Accounts.

{(a) Interest and Sinking Fund. The fund, known as the “Mayers Memorial Hospital
District, General Obligation Bonds Interest and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking
Fund”), previously established and maintained by the Treasurer-Tax Collector for the District
is hereby continued for the 2017 Refunding Bonds. Moneys deposited therein shall be used only
for payment of principal and interest on all general obligation bonds of the District. If, after
payment in full of all of the District’s general obligation bonds, there remain excess proceeds,
any such excess amounts shall be transferred to the general fund of the District.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 3.02(a), any excess proceeds of the
2017 Refunding Bonds not needed for the authorized purposes set forth herein for which the
2017 Refunding Bonds are being issued shall be applied solely in a manner which is consistent
with the requirements of applicable state and federal tax law, including but not limited to the
requirements of federal tax law (if any) relating to the yield at which such proceeds are
permitted to be invested. The interest eamed on the moneys deposited to the Interest and
Sinking Fund shall be retained in the Interest and Sinking Fund and used for the purposes
thereof. By receipt of a copy of this resolution, the Treasurer-Tax Collector is hereby requested
to continue and maintain the Interest and Sinking Fund. Moneys held in the Interest and
Sinking Fund shall be invested at the Treasurer-Tax Collector’s discretion, unless otherwise
directed in writing by the District, pursuant to law and the investment policy of the County.

(b) Costs of Issuance Fund. A fund, to be known as the “Mayers Memorial Hospital
District, 2017 General Obligation Refunding Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund” (the “Costs of
Issuance Fund”), is hereby created and established with the District. Moneys deposited therein
shall be used solely for the payment of Costs of Issuance of the 2017 Refunding Bonds. The
District shall keep a written record of disbursements from the Costs of Issuance Fund. Moneys
held in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be invested by the District pursuant to law and the
investment policy of the District.

Section 3.03. Application of Proceeds of Sale of 2017 Refunding Bonds. On the Closing
Date, the proceeds of sale of the 2017 Refunding Bonds shall be paid by the Owner as follows:

(a) to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, the payment agent of the 2011
Bonds, the amount required for the redemption on the Closing Date of the Refunded 2011
Bonds; and

(b) to the District, the remaining amount.

Section 3.04. Security for the 2017 Refunding_Bonds. There shall be levied by the
County on all the taxable property in the District, in addition to all other taxes, a continuing

-10-



direct and ad valorem tax annually during the period the 2017 Refunding Bonds are
outstanding in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 2017 Refunding
Bonds when due, which moneys when collected will be placed in the Interest and Sinking Fund
of the District, which fund is irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of and
interest on the 2017 Refunding Bonds when and as the same fall due. The moneys in the
Interest and Sinking Fund, to the extent necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the
2017 Refunding Bonds as the same become due and payable, shall be transferred by the
County to the District, as necessary to pay the principal of and interest on the 2017 Refunding
Bonds. The property taxes and amounts held in the Interest and Sinking Fund of the District
shall immediately be subject to this pledge, and the pledge shall constitute a lien and security
interest which shall be effective, binding, and enforceable against the District, its successors,
creditors and all others irrespective of whether those parties have notice of the pledge and
without the need of any physical delivery, recordation, filing, or further act. The pledge is an
agreement between the District and the Owner in addition to the statutory lien that exists (as
described below), and the 2017 Refunding Bonds were issued to refinance one or more capital
projects authorized by the voters of the District and not to finance the general purposes of the
District.

Additionally, in accordance with section 53515(a) of the Government Code, the 2017
Refunding Bonds shall be secured by a statutory lien on all revenues received pursuant to the
levy and collection of the tax for the payment of bonds authorized by the voters of the District.
The lien shall automatically attach without further action or authorization by the District or
the County. The lien shall be valid and binding from the time the 2017 Refunding Bonds are
executed and delivered. The revenues received pursuant to the levy and collection of the tax
shall be immediately subject to the lien, and the lien shall automatically attach to the revenues
and be effective, binding, and enforceable against the District, its successors, transferees, and
creditors, and all others asserting rights therein, irrespective of whether those parties have
notice of the lien and without the need for any physical delivery, recordation, filing, or further
act.

11=



ARTICLE IV
SALE OF BONDS; OFFICIAL ACTION

Section 4.01. Sale_of the 2017 Refunding Bonds. The Board hereby authorizes the
negotiated sale of the 2017 Refunding Bonds to the Owner.

Section 4.023. Official Action. All actions heretofore taken by the officers and agents of
the District with respect to the sale and issuance of the 2017 Refunding Bonds are hereby
approved, and the District Representatives, and any and all other officers of the District are
hereby authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the District, to do any
and all things and take any and all actions relating to the execution and delivery of any and all
certificates, requisitions, agreements and other documents, which they, or any of them, may
deem necessary or advisable in order to consummate the lawful issuance and delivery of the
2017 Refunding Bonds in accordance with this Resclution.

Section 4,03, Regulations. The Series B Bonds are given as evidence of a_loan to_the
District . made by_the United States of America pursuant.to the Consolidated Farm.and_ Rural
Development Act and shall be_subject to the applicable present regulations of the United

States Department of Agriculture, Rural Housing Service, and to its applicable future
regulations not inconsistent with the express provisions hereof.




ARTICLE V
COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT

Section 5.01. Punctual Payment. The District will punctually pay, or cause to be paid,
the principal of and interest on the 2017 Refunding Bonds, in strict conformity with the terms
of the 2017 Refunding Bonds and of this Resolution, and it will faithfully observe and perform
all of the conditions, covenants and requirements of this Resolution and of the 2017 Refunding
Bonds. Nothing herein contained shall prevent the District from making advances of its own
moneys, howscever derived, to any of the uses or purposes permitted by law.

Section 5.02. Extension of Time for Payment. In order to prevent any accumulation of
claims for interest after maturity, the District will not, directly or indirectly, extend or consent
to the extension of the time for the payment of any claim for interest on any of the 2017
Refunding Bonds and will not, directly or indirectly, approve any such arrangement by
purchasing or funding said claims for interest or in any other manner. In case any such claim
for interest shall be extended or funded, whether or not with the consent of the District, such
claim for interest so extended or funded shall not be entitled, in case of default hereunder, to
the benefits of this Resolution, except subject to the prior payment in full of the principal of all
of the 2017 Refunding Bonds then Outstanding and of all claims for interest which shall not
have so extended or funded.

Section 5.03. Protection of Security and Rights of the Owner. The District will preserve
and protect the security of the 2017 Refunding Bonds and the rights of the Owner, and will
warrant and defend its rights against all claims and demands of all persons. From and after
the sale and delivery of any of the 2017 Refunding Bonds by the District, the 2017 Refunding
Bonds shall be incontestable by the District.

Section 5.04. Further Assurances. The District will adopt, make, execute and deliver
any and all such further resolutions, instruments and assurances as may be reasonably
necessary or proper to carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance of this Resolution,
and for the better assuring and confirming unto the Owner of the rights and benefits provided
in this Resolution.

Section 5.05. Tax Covenants.

(a) Private Activity Bond Limitation. The District shall assure that the proceeds of the
2017 Refunding Bonds are not so used as to cause the 2017 Refunding Bonds to satisfy the
private business tests of section 141(b) of the Code or the private loan financing test of section
141(¢) of the Code.

(b) Federal Guarantee Prohibition. The District shall not take any action or permit or
suffer any action to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause any of the 2017
Refunding Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the
Code.

(c} Rebate Requirement. The District shall take any and all actions necessary to assure
compliance with section 148(f) of the Code, relating to the rebate of excess investment
earnings, if any, to the federal government, to the extent that such section is applicable to the
2017 Refunding Bonds.

(d) No Arbitrage. The District shall not take, or permit or suffer to be taken, any action
with respect to the proceeds of the 2017 Refunding Bonds which, if such action had been

13-



reasonably expected to have been taken, or had been deliberately and intentionally taken, on
the date of issuance of the 2017 Refunding Bonds would have caused the 2017 Refunding
Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148 of the Code.

(e) Maintenance of Tax-Exemption. The District shall take all actions necessary to assure
the exclusion of interest on the 2017 Refunding Bonds from the gross income of the Owner to
the same extent as such interest is permitted to be excluded from gross income under the Code
as in effect on the date of issuance of the 2017 Refunding Bonds.

14~



ARTICLE VI

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF BONDOWNERS

Section 6.01. Events of Default. The following events (“Events of Default”) shall be
events of default hereunder:

{a) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of the principal of on any
2017 Refunding Bond when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at
maturity as therein expressed, by declaration or otherwise;

(b) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any installment of
interest on any 2017 Refunding Bond when and as such interest installment shall become due
and payable;

(c) if default shall be made by the District in the observance of any of the covenants,
agreements or conditions on its part in this Resolution or in the 2017 Refunding Bonds
contained, and such default shall have continued for a period of thirty (30) days after written
notice thereof to the District; or

(d) if the District shall file a petition seeking reorganization or arrangement under the
federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America, or if a
court of competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition, seeking reorganization of the District
under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of
America, or if, under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court
of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the District or of the whole or any
substantial part of its property.

Section 6.02. Remedies of Owner. The Owner shall have the right:

(a) by mandamus, suit, action or proceeding, to compel the District and its members,
officers, agents or employees to perform each and every term, provision and covenant
contained in this Resolution and in the 2017 Refunding Bonds, and to require the carrying out
of any or all such covenants and agreements of the District and the fulfillment of all duties
imposed upon it;

(b} by suit, action or proceeding in equity, to enjoin any acts or things which are
unlawful, or the violation of any of the Owner’ rights; or

{c) upon the happening of any Event of Default, by suit, action or proceeding in any
court of competent jurisdiction, to require the District and its members and employees to
account as if it and they were the trustees of an express trust.

Section 6.03. Non-Waiver. Nothing in this Article VII or in any other provision of this
Resolution, or in the 2017 Refunding Bonds, shall affect or impair the obligation of the District,
which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and interest on the 2017
Refunding Bonds to the respective Owner at the respective dates of maturity, as herein
provided, or affect or impair the right of action, which is also absolute and unconditional, of
such Owner to institute suit to enforce such payment by virtue of the contract embodied in the
2017 Refunding Bonds.

A waiver of any default by the Owner shall not affect any subsequent default or impair
any rights or remedies on the subsequent default. No delay or omission of the Owner to

-15-



exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or
shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein, and every
power and remedy conferred upon the Owner by this Article VI may be enforced and exercised
from time to time and as often as shall be deemed expedient by the Owner.

If a suit, action or proceeding to enforce any right or exercise any remedy be abandoned
or determined adversely to the Owner, the District and the Owner shall be restored to their
former positions, rights and remedies as if such suit, action or proceeding had not been
brought or taken.

Section 6.04. Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon the Owner of
2017 Refunding Bonds shall be exclusive of any other remedy and that each and every remedy
shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or
thereafter conferred on the Owner.

-16-



ARTICLE VII
SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTIONS

Section 7.01. Supplemental Resolutions Effective Without Consent of the Owner. For
any one or more of the following purposes and at any time or from time to time, a
Supplemental Resolution of the District may be adopted, which, without the requirement of
consent of the Owner, shall be fully effective in accordance with its terms:

(a) to add to the covenants and agreements of the District in this Resolution, other
covenants and agreements to be observed by the District which are not contrary to or
inconsistent with this Resolution as theretofore in effect;

(b) to add to the limitations and restrictions in this Resolution, other limitations and
restrictions to be observed by the District which are not contrary to or inconsistent with this
Resolution as theretofore in effect;

(c) to confirm, as further assurance, any pledge under, and the subjection to any lien or
pledge created or to be created by, this Resolution, of any moneys, securities or funds, or to
establish any additional funds or accounts to be held under this Resolution;

(d) to cure any ambiguity, supply and omission, or cure or correct any defect or
inconsistent provision in this Resolution; or

(e) to make such additions, deletions or modifications as may be necessary or desirable
to assure exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the 2017 Refunding Bonds.

Section 7.02. Supplemental Resolutions Effective With Consent to the Owner. Any
modification or amendment of this Resolution and of the rights and obligations of the District
and of the Owner, in any particular, may be made by a Supplemental Resolution, with the
written consent of the Owner of at least two-thirds in aggregate principal amount of the 2017
Refunding Bonds Outstanding at the time such consent is given. No such modification or
amendment shall permit a change in the terms of maturity of the principal of any Outstanding
2017 Refunding Bonds or of any interest payable thereon or a reduction in the principal
amount thereof or in the rate of interest thereon, or shall reduce the percentage of 2017
Refunding Bonds the consent of the Owner of which is required to effect any such modification
or amendment, or shall change any of the provisions in Section 7.01 hereof relating to Events of
Default, or shall reduce the amount of moneys pledged for the repayment of the 2017
Refunding Bonds without the consent of all the Owner of such 2017 Refunding Bonds.

47



ARTICLE Vil
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 8.01. Benefits of Resolution_Limited to Parties. Nothing in this Resolution,
expressed or implied, is intended to give to any person other than the District and the Owner,
any right, remedy, claim under or by reason of this Resolution. Any covenants, stipulations,
promises or agreements in this Resolution contained by and on behalf of the District shall be
for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Owner.

Section 8.02. Execution of Documents and Proof of Ownerhip by Owner. Any request,
declaration or other instrument which this Resolution may require or permit to be executed by
Owner may be in one or more instruments of similar tenor, and shall be executed by Owner in
person or by their attorneys appointed in writing.

Except as otherwise herein expressly provided, the fact and date of the execution by the
Owner or its attorney of such request, declaration or other instrument, or of such writing
appointing such attorney, may be proved by the certificate of any notary public or other officer
authorized to take acknowledgments of deeds to be recorded in the state in which he purports
to act, that the person signing such request, declaration or other instrument or writing
acknowledged to him the execution thereof, or by an affidavit of a witness of such execution,
duly swom to before such notary public or other officer.

Except as otherwise herein expressly provided, the ownership of registered 2017
Refunding Bonds and the amount, maturity, number and date of holding the same shall be
proved by the registry books.

Section 8.03. Waiver of Personal Liability. No boardmember, officer, agent or employee
of the District shall be individually or personally liable for the payment of the principal of or
interest on the 2017 Refunding Bonds; but nothing herein contained shall relieve any such
boardmember, officer, agent or employee from the performance of any official duty provided
by law.

Section 8.04. Partial Invalidity. If any Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of
this Resolution shall for any reason be held illegal or unenforceable, such holding shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution. The District hereby declares that
it would have adopted this Resolution and each and every other Section, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase hereof and authorized the issue of the 2017 Refunding Bonds pursuant
thereto irrespective of the fact that any one or more Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or
phrases of this Resolution may be held illegal, invalid or unenforceable. If, by reason of the
judgment of any court, the District is rendered unable to perform its duties hereunder, all such
duties and all of the rights and powers of the District hereunder shall be assumed by and vest
in the District in trust for the benefit of the Owner.

Section 8.05. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect from and
after the date of its passage and adoption.

-18-



LR R RN X

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION is approved and adopted by the Board of Directors
of the Mayers Memorial Hospital District this 28th day of June, 2017.

President of the Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board of Directors

-19-



EXHIBIT A

FORM OF 2017 REFUNDING BOND

United States of America
State of California
Shasta County

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
2017 GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS

REGISTERED OWNER:  United States of America, acting through the Rural Housing Service
PRINCIPAL SUM: FOUR MILLION FIVE HUNDRED SEVENTY-FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS

The MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT, a health care district, duly organized and
existing under and by virtue of the Constitution and laws of the State of California (the “District”), for value
received hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner stated above (the "Owner”), on the Maturity
Date stated above (subject to any right of prior redemption hereinafter provided for), the Principal Sum
stated above, in lawful money of the United States of America, and to pay interest thereon in like lawful
money; provided however, that if at the time of authentication of this Bond, interest is in default on this
Bond, this Bond shall bear interest from the interest payment date to which interest has previously been
paid or made available for payment on this Bond) until payment of such Principal Sum in full, at the rate
per annum stated above, payable on March_1 and September 1 in each year, commencing March 1, 2018,
computed on_the basis of a_year_of 365 days and_actual days elapsed. The principal hereof and interest
hereon is the Owner through a Pre-Authorized Debt Payment Process arranged by the District with the
Owner.

This Bond is issued by the District and designated as “Mayers Memorial Hospital District (Shasta
County, California) 2017 General Obligation Refunding Bonds” (the “Bonds”), in an aggregate principal
amount of four million five hundred seventy-four thousand dollars ($4,574,000), pursuant to the provisions
of Articles 9 and 11 of Chapter 3 (commencing with section 53550) of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California
Government Code (the “Act”), and pursuant to Resolution No. __ of the District adopted June 28, 2017 (the
“Resolution”), authorizing the issuance of the Bonds. Reference is hereby made to the Resolution (copies of
which are on file at the office of the Clerk of the Board of Directors of the District) and the Act for a
description of the terms on which the Bonds are issued and the rights thereunder of the Owner, to all of the
provisions of which Resolution the Owner hereby assents and agrees.

The Bonds are being issued to (a) refund, on current basis, the current interest portion of the
District'’s outstanding current interest Mayers Memorial Hospital District (Shasta County, California)
General Obligation Bonds, 2010 Election, 2011 Series A, and (c} pay for costs of issuance of the Bonds.

This Bond and the interest hereon is the general obligation of the District and do not constitute an
obligation of the County of Shasta. The District has the power and is obligated to cause the Shasta County
Board of Supervisors to levy ad valorem taxes for the payment of the Bonds and the interest thereon upon all
property within the District subject to taxation by the District. No part of any fund of the County is pledged
or obligated to the payment of the Bonds.

The Bonds are callable for redemption prior to their stated maturity date at the option of the District,
as a whole, or in part on any date and may be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof by payment of all
principal, plus accrued interest to date of redemption, without premium.

ExhibitF
Page 1



The Bonds are also subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on September 1 in the years,and |
in the amounts, as set forth in the following table, at a redemption price equal to one hundred percent
(100%) of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed (without premium), together with interest accrued
thereon to the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, that if some but not all of the Bonds have been
redeemed pursuant to the preceding paragraph, the aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed
under this paragraph shall be reduced on a pro rata basis in integral mulliples of $5,000, as shall be
designated pursuant to written notice filed by the District with the Owner:

Sinking Fund Princdipal Sinking Fund Principal
Redemption Date Amount tobe Redemption Date Amounttobe
(September 1) Redeemed {September 1) Redeemed
2018 $92,000 2033 $149,000
2019 25,000 2034 154,000
2020 98,000 2035 159,000
2021 102,000 2036 164,000
2022 105,000 2037 169,000
2023 108,000 2038 175,000
2024 112,000 2039 181,000
202, 113,000 2040 187,000
2026 119,000 2041 193,000
2027 123,000 2042 199,000
2028 127,000 2043 205,000
2029 131,000 2044 212,000
2030 135,000 2045 219,000
2031 140,000 2046 226,000
2032 144,000 20471 236,000

+Maturity

The District shall give notice of the redemption of the Bonds. Such notice shall specify: (a) that the
Bonds or a designated portion thereof are to be redeemed, (b) the date of notice and the date of redemption,
(d) the place or places where the redemption will be made, and (e) descriptive information regarding the
Bonds including the dated date, interest rate and stated maturity date. Such notice shall further state that on
the specified date there shall become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed, the portion of the
principal amount of such Bond to be redeemed, together with interest accrued to said date, and that from
and after such date interest with respect thereto shall cease to accrue and be payable.

If an Event of Default, as defined in the Resolution, shall occur, the principal of all Bonds may be
declared due and payable upon the conditions, in the manner and with the effect provided in the
Resolution, but such declaration and its consequences may be rescinded and annulled as further provided
in the Resolution.

The Bonds are issuable as one fully registered bond, without coupons. Subject to the limitations and
conditions_and _upon_payment of the charges, if any, as provided_in_the Resolution, Bonds may be
exchanged fora like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized denominations

The District may ftreat the Owner hereof as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, and the
District shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Resolution may be amended without the consent of the Owner to the extent set forth in the
Resolution.

This Bonds is given as evidence of a loan to the District made by the United States of America
pursuant to the Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act and shall be subject to the applicable
present regulations of the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Housing Service, and to its
applicable future regulations not inconsistent with the express provisions hereof

ExhibitF
Page2



It is hereby certified that all of the things, conditions and acts required to exist, to have happened or
to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond do exist, have happened or have been
performed in due and regular time and manner as required by the laws of the State of California, and that
the amount of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the District, does not exceed any limit
prescribed by any laws of the State of California, and is not in excess of the amount of Bonds permitted to be
issued under the Resolution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayers Memorial Hospital District has caused this Bond to be
executed in its name and on its behalf with the facsimile signatures of the President of its Board of Directors
and the Clerk of the Board of Directors, all as of the Issue Date stated above.

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT

President of the Board of Directors

ATTEST:

"Clerk of the Board of Directors

ExhibitF
Page3



EXHIBIT B
FORM OF PURCHASER'S LETTER

Mayers Memorial Hospital District
Fall River Mills, California

Re: Mayers Memorial Hospital District (Shasta County, California) 2017 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned (the “Purchaser”), being the Purchaser of the above-referenced bonds (the
“Bonds”}issued pursuant to Article 9 of Chapter 3 (commencing with section 53550) of Division 2 of Title 5 of
the California Government Code (the “Act”), Resolution No. . adopted by the Board of Trustees of the
Mayers Memorial Hospital District (the “District”) on June 28, 2017 (the “Resolution”), does hereby certify,
represent and warrant for the benefit of the District that:

{(a) The Purchaser  MARK OR INDICATE APPROPRIATELYY):

[__] isa qualified institutional buyer” (a "Qualified Institutional Buyer”) within the
meaning of Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”),

[_] isan “accredited investor” as defined in Section 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of Regulation
D promulgated under the Securities Act {(an “Accredited Investor”), or

[__] isa trust, partnership, custodial arrangement or similar entity, interests in which
are offered and sold in a private placement or limited offering only to Qualified Institutional Buyers
or Accredited Investors.

[__] isanaffiliate of

{b) The Purchaser understands that the Bonds have not been registered under the
United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or under any state securities laws. The Purchaser
agrees that it will comply with any applicable state and federal securities laws then in effect with
respect to any disposition of the Bonds by it, and further acknowledges that any current exemption
from registration of the Bonds does not affect or diminish such requirements.

(c) The Purchaser is not now and has never been controlled by, or under common
control with, the District. The District has never been and is not now controlled by the Purchaser.
The Purchaser has entered into no arrangements with the District or with any affiliate in connection
with the Bonds, other than as disclosed to the District.

(d) The Purchaser has authority to purchase the Bonds and to execute this letter and
any other instruments and documents required to be executed by the Purchaser in connection with
the purchase of the Bonds. The individual who is signing this letter on behalf of the Purchaser isa
duly appointed, qualified, and acting officer of the Purchaser and is authorized to cause the
Purchaser to make the Bonds, representations and warranties contained herein by execution of this
letter on behalf of the Purchaser.

(e) The Purchaser understands that the Bonds are not secured by any pledge of any
moneys received or to be received from taxation by the District, the State of California or any
political subdivision or taxing District thereof; that the Bonds will never represent or constitute a
general obligation or a pledge of the faith and credit of the District, the State of California or any
political subdivision thereof; that no right will exist to have taxes levied by the State of California or

ExhibitF
Page 1



any political subdivision thereof for the payment of principal and interest with respect to the Bonds;
and that the liability of the District with respect to the Bonds is subject to further limitations as set
forth in the Resolution.

{f) The Purchaser has been informed that the Bonds (i) have not been and will not be
registered or otherwise qualified for sale under the “Blue Sky” laws and regulations of any
jurisdiction, and (ii} will not be listed on any stock or other securities exchange.

) The Purchaser acknowledges that it has the right to sell and transfer the Bonds,
subject to compliance with the transfer restrictions set forth in Section 206 of the Resolution,
induding in certain circumstances the requirement for the delivery to the District of an investor’s
letter in the same form as this Investor’s Letter, including this paragraph. Failure to comply with
the provisions of Section 2.06 of the Resolution shall cause the purported transfer to be null and
void.

(h) The Purchaser acknowledges that the Bonds are exempt from the requirements of
Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission and that the District has not undertaken to
provide any continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds.

The Purchaser acknowledges that the sale of the Bonds to the Purchaser is made in reliance upon
the certifications, representations and warranties herein by the addressees hereto. Capitalized terms used
herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings given such terms in the Resolution.

[PURCHASER]

By
Name
Title

ExhibitF
Page 2






Quint & Thimmig LLP 04/16/17
[Series B General Obligation Bonds] 05/19/17
06/19/17

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 20/7-0
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MAYERS
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE

AND SALE OF THE DISTRICT’S GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS,
ELECTION OF 2010, SERIES B (2017)

Adopted June 28, 2017

13036.04



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLEI
DEFINITIONS; AUTHORITY
Section 1.01. Definitions 2
Section 1.02. Authority for this Resolution 4
ARTICLEN
THE Series B BondS
Section 2.001. Authorization 5
Section 2.02. Terms of Series B Bonds 5
Section 2.03. Redemption ... g5
Section 2.04. Form of Series B Bonds 7
Section 2.05. Execution of Series B Bonds............cocooecc.c. 7
Section 2.06. No Transfer or Exchange of BOnds ..o erscsesnnensressessessrenese Error! Bookmark not defined.7
Section 2.07. Series B Bonds Mutilated, Lost, Destroyed or Stolen 93
ARTICLEII
ISSUE OF Series B BondS; APPLICATION OF Series B Bond PROCEEDS; SECURITY FOR THE Series B
BondS
Section 3.01. Issuance, Award and Delivery of Series B Bonds 108
Section 3.02, Funds and Accounts 10&
Section 3.03, Application of Proceeds of Sale of Series B Bonds.......owmmmmmmmmn 119
Section 3.04. Security for the Series B Bonds 11e
ARTICLEIV
SALE OF BONDS; OFFICIAL ACTION
Section 4.01. Sale of the Series B Bonds 1218
Section 4.02, Official Action 12168
ARTICLEY
COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT
Section 5.01. Punctual I’;?'ment ....... 138
Section 5.02. Extension of Time for Payment 13
Section 5.03. Protection of Security and Rights of the Owner 134
Section 5.04. Further Assurances 1313
St ON B 5 T X O BINDTIE jsiauissioiiiiriseiissisaissrusisniviosiuiaisiestslssa A o e AR G R P b B 131
ARTICLEVI
EVENTSOF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF BONDOWNERS
Section 6.01. Events of Default 1513
Section 6.02. Other Remedies of Owner 1513
Section 6.03. Non-WaivVer ... 1513
Sachion 6.04. Remedies INOb ExaliSi Ve ..o e e i e simi o e i e it i e 16+
ARTICLEVI
SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTIONS
Section 7.01. Supplemental Resolutions Effective Without Consent of the Owner 1735
Section 7.02. Supplemental Resolutions Effective With Consent to the Owner 1715



ARTICLE VI

MISCELLAMNEQUS
Section 8.01. Benefits of Resolution Limited to Parties 1816
Section 8.02. Defeasance Error! Bookmark not defined 16
Section 8.03. Execution of Documents and Proof of Ownerhip by Owner 1817
Section 8.04. Waiver of Personal Liability 1837
Section 8.06. Partial Invalidity 18
Section 8.07. Effective Date of Resolution 18

EXHIBIT A: FORM OF Series B Bond

~li=



MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MAYERS
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE
AND SALE OF THE DISTRICT'S GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS,
ELECTION OF 2010, SERIES B (2017)

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Mayers Memorial Hospital
District (the “District”), as follows:

WHEREAS, a duly called general election was held in the District on November 2, 2010,
and thereafter canvassed pursuant to law;

WHEREAS, at such election there was submitted to and approved by the requisite two-
thirds (2/3) vote of the qualified electors of the District a question as to the issuance and sale
of general obligation bonds of the District to finance certain capital facilities of the District (the
“Project”), in the maximum aggregate principal amount of $14,000,000 (the “Bonds”) payable
from the levy of an ad valorem tax against the taxable property in the District (the
“Authorization”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 4 of Division 23 (commencing with section 32300) of
the California Health and Safety Code, the District is empowered to issue general obligation
bonds;

WHEREAS, in 2011, the District issued its $5,000,886.35 Mayers Memorial Hospital
District (Shasta County, California) General Obligation Bonds, 2010 Election, 2011 Series A,
for the purpose of raising moneys for the Project and other authorized costs

WHEREAS, the District wishes at this time to authorize the issuance and sale of the
second series of general obligation bonds under the Authorization in the aggregate principal
amount of not to exceed $3,100,000, its Mayers Memorial Hospital District (Shasta County,
California) General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2010, Series B (2017) (the “Series B Bonds”)
for the purpose of raising moneys for the Project and other authorized costs; and

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Mayers
Memorial Hospital District, as follows:



ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS; AUTHORITY

Section 1.01. Definitions. The terms defined in this Section 1.01, as used and
capitalized herein, shall, for all purposes of this Resolution, have the meanings ascribed to
them below, unless the context clearly requires some other meaning,.

“Act” means Chapter 4 of Division 23 (commencing with section 32300) of the
California Health and Safety Code, as is in effect on the date of adoption hereof and as
amended hereafter.

“Articles,” “Sections” and other subdivisions are to the corresponding Articles, Sections
or subdivisions of this Resolution, and the words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder” and other
words of similar import refer to this Resolution as a whole and not to any particular Article,
Section or subdivision hereof.

“Authorized Investments” means any investments permitted by law to be made with
moneys belonging to, or in the custody of, the District, but only to the extent that the same are
acquired at Fair Market Value.

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the District.

“Bond Counsel” means any attomey or firm of attomeys nationally recognized for
expertise in rendering opinions as to the legality and tax exempt status of securities issued by
public entities.

“Bond Register” means the registration books for the 2017 Refunding Bonds maintained
by the District.

“Closing Date” means the date upon which there is an exchange of the Series B Bonds
for the proceeds representing the purchase of the Series B Bonds by the Original Owner.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as in effect on the date of issuance of
the Series B Bonds or (except as otherwise referenced herein) as it may be amended to apply to
obligations issued on the date of issuance of the Series B Bonds, together with applicable
temporary and final regulations promulgated, and applicable official public guidance
published, under the Code.

“Costs of Issuance” means all items of expense directly or indirectly reimbursable to the
District relating to the issuance, execution and delivery of the Series B Bonds including, but not
limited to, filing and recording costs, settlement costs, printing costs, reproduction and binding
costs, legal fees and charges, fees for execution, transportation and safekeeping of the Series B
Bonds and charges and fees in connection with the foregoing.

“County” means Shasta County, Califomnia.

“Debt Service” means the scheduled amount of interest and amortization of principal
payable on the Series B Bonds during the period of computation, excluding amounts
scheduled during such period which relate to principal which has been retired before the
beginning of such period.

i
=
i



“District Representative” means the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer,
or any other person authorized by resolution of the Board of the District to act on behalf of the
District with respect to this Resolution and the Series B Bonds.

“Fair Market Value” means the price at which a willing buyer would purchase the
investment from a willing seller in a bona fide, arm’s length transaction (determined as of the
date the contract to purchase or sell the investment becomes binding) if the investment is
traded on an established securities market (within the meaning of section 1273 of the Code)
and, otherwise, the term “Fair Market Value” means the acquisition price in a bona fide arm’s
length transaction (as referenced above} if (i) the investment is a certificate of deposit that is
acquired in accordance with applicable regulations under the Code, (ii} the investment is an
agreement with specifically negotiated withdrawal or reinvestment provisions and a
specifically negotiated interest rate (for example, a guaranteed investment contract, a forward
supply contract or other investment agreement) that is acquired in accordance with applicable
regulations under the Code, (iii) the investment is a United States Treasury Security—State
and Local Govemnment Series that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations of the
United States Bureau of Public Debt, or (iv) any commingled investment fund in which the
District and related parties do not own more than a ten percent (10%) beneficial interest therein
if the return paid by the fund is without regard to the source of the investment.

“Federal Securities” means United States Treasury Bonds, bills or certificates of
indebtedness or those for which the faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the
payment of principal and interest.

“Interest Payment Date” means with respect to interest, March 1 and September 1 of
each year commencing on March 1, 2018, and with respect to principal, September 1, of each
year commencing on September 1, 2018

“Outstanding” means, when used as of any particular time with reference to Series B
Bonds, all Series B Bonds except:

(a) Series B Bonds theretofore canceled by the District or surrendered to the District for
cancellation;

{b) Series B Bonds paid or deemed to have been paid within the meaning of Section 9.02
hereof; and

(c) Series B Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Series B Bonds shall have
been authorized, executed, issued and delivered by the District pursuant to this Resolution.

“Owner” means the United States of America, acting through the Rural Housing
Service, the initial registered owner of the Series B Bonds.

“Record Date” means the 15th day of the month preceding each Interest Payment Date.

“Regulations” means temporary and permanent regulations promulgated under the
Code.

“Resolution” means this Resolution, including all amendments hereto and supplements
hereof which are duly adopted by the Board from time to time in accordance herewith.

“Supplemental Resolution” means any resolution supplemental to or amendatory of this
Resolution, adopted by the District in accordance with Article VIII hereof.



“Treasurer-Tax Collector” means the County Treasurer-Tax Collector.

“Series B Bonds” means the Mayers Memorial Hospital District (Shasta County,
California) General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2010, Series B (2017), issued and at any time
Outstanding pursuant to this Resolution.

“Written Request of the District” means an instrument in writing signed by the District
Representative or by any other officer of the District duly authorized by the District and listed
on a Written Request of the District for that purpose.

Section 1.02. Authority for this Resolution. This Resolution is entered into pursuant to
the provisions of the Act.




ARTICLE Il
THE SERIES B BONDS

Section 2.01. Authorization. Series B Bonds are hereby authorized to be issued by the
District under and subject to the terms of the Act and this Resolution. The principal amount of
the Series B Bonds shall be $3,031,000, being the amount required to finance the current
requirements of the Project and to pay the Costs of Issuance. This Resolution constitutes a
continuing agreement with the Owner issued or to be issued hereunder and then Outstanding
to secure the full and final payment of principal of and the interest on all Series B Bonds which
may from time to time be executed and delivered hereunder, subject to the covenants,
agreements, provisions and conditions herein contained. The Series B Bonds shall be designated
the “Mayers Memorial Hospital District (Shasta County, California) General Obligation Bonds,
Election of 2010, Series B (2017).”

Section 2.02. Terms of Series B Bonds.

(a) Form; Numbering. The Series B Bonds shall be issued as one fully registered Series B
Bond, without coupons, in the aggregate principal amount thereof, maturing on September_1,
2047, The Series B Bonds shall not be (i) assigned a rating by any rating agency, (ii) registered
with The Depository Trust Company or any other securities depository, (iii) issued pursuant
to any type of offering document or official statement, or (iv) assigned a CUSIP number by
Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Service Bureau.

{(b) Date of Series B Bonds. The Series B Bonds shall be dated as of the Closing Date.

(d) Interest. The Series B Bonds shall bear interest at the rate of 3.250% per annum,
payable semi-annually on each Interest Payment Date, Interest on the 2017 Refunding Bonds

shall be computed on the basis of a_year of 365 days and actual days elapsed.

Each Series B Bond shall bear interest from the Payment Date next preceding the date
of registration and authentication thereof unless (i) it is registered and authenticated as of an
Payment Date, in which event it shall bear interest from such date, or (ii} it is registered and
authenticated prior to an Payment Date and after the close of business on the fifteenth day of
the month preceding such Payment Date, in which event it shall bear interest from such
Payment Date, or (iii) it is registered and authenticated prior to February 15, 2018, in which
event it shall bear interest from the date described in paragraph (b) of this Section 2.02;
provided, however, that if at the time of authentication of a Series B Bond, interest is in default
thereon, such Series B Bond shall bear interest from the Payment Date to which interest has
previously been paid or made available for payment thereon.

{d) Payment. Principal of and interest on the Series B Bonds (including the final interest
payment upon maturity or earlier redemption) will be paid through the Pre-Authorized Debt
Payment Process, to be established by the District and approved by the Assignee prior to the
Closing Date. Each semiannual payment of interest shall be in the amount of one half of the
annual amount of interest due.

(e) Drawn Down Bonds. The Series B Bonds are draw-down bonds. Amounts advanced
to the District shall be applied to pay the costs of the Project. The total principal amount of the
Series B Bonds that may be delivered hereunder is hereby expressly limited to $3,031,000,
provided that the amount of Series B Bonds Outstanding at any time shall include only those
Series B Bonds for which the purchase price has been advanced from time to time by the initial
Owner. No Series B Bonds may be delivered under the provisions of this Resolution except in

5-



accordance with this Article II. The initial Owner shall fund the purchase price of the Series B
Bonds as requested by the District from time to time pursuant to the submittal by the District
of an advance request, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, approved by the
initial Owner. Such funded amount shall be transferred to the District. Amounts required to
pay costs of the Project shall be paid by the District. Following each such draw-down, the
aggregate amount of Series B Bonds purchased shall be deemed Outstanding and such
amount so drawn down shall begin to accrue interest. The first draw-down, on the Closing
Date, shall be the amount set forth in Section 3.03.

Section 2.03. Redemption.

(a) Optional Redemption. The Series B Bonds shall be subject to optional redemption
prior to their stated maturity date in whole or in part on any date at a redemption price equal
to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to such date.

(b) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. The Series B Bonds shall be subject to

mandatory sinking fund redemption on each September 1, commencing September 1, 2020, to
and including September 1, 2047, as follows:

Sinking Fund Principal Sinking Fund Principal
Redemption Date Amounttobe Redemption Date Amount tobe
{September 1) Redeemed {September 1) Redeemed
2020 $.68,000 2034 $106,000
2021 70,000 2035 110,000
2022 73,000 2036 113,000
2023 72,000 2037 117,000
2024 77,000 2038 121,000
2025 80,000 2039 125,000
2026 82,000 2040 129,000
2027 85,000 2041 133,000
2028 88,000 2042 137.000
2029 91,000 2043 142,000
2030 94,000 2044 147,000
2031 97000 2045 151,000
2032 100,000 2046 156,000
2033 103,000 20471 161,000

tMaturity

If some but not all of the Series B Bonds have been redeemed pursuant to the preceding
subsection (a) of this Section 2.03, the aggregate principal amount of the Series B Bonds to be
redeemed in each year pursuant to this subsection (b) shall be reduced on a pro rata basis in
integral multiples of $1,000, as shall be designated pursuant to written notice filed by the
District with the Owner.

(c) Notice of Optional Redemption. The District shall mail (by first class mail) notice of
any redemption to the Owner at least thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60} days prior to the
proposed redemption date; provided, however, that neither failure to receive any such notice so
mailed nor any defect therein shall affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of
such Series B Bonds or the cessation of the accrual of interest thereon. Such notice shall state
the date of the notice, the redemption date, the redemption place and the redemption amount,
giving notice also that further interest on such Series B Bonds will not accrue from and after the
redemption date.




Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of any optional redemption of the Series B
Bonds, the notice of redemption shall state that the redemption is conditioned upon sufficient
moneys to redeem the Series B Bonds being available on the scheduled redemption date, and
that the optional redemption shall not occur if, by no later than the scheduled redemption
date, sufficient moneys to redeem the Series B Bonds have not been identified by the District.
In the event the District does not identify sufficient funds by the scheduled optional
redemption date to so redeem the Series B Bonds to be optionally redeemed, the District shall
send written notice to the Owner to the effect that the redemption did not occur as anticipated,
and the Series B Bonds for which notice of optional redemption was given shall remain
Outstanding for all purposes.

Notice of redemption shall not be required in connection with mandatory sinking fund
redemption.

(d) Partial Redemption of Series B Bonds. In the event only a portion of the Series B Bonds
is called for redemption, then upon surrender of such Series B Bond the District shall execute
and deliver to the Owner, at the expense of the District, a new Series B Bond in aggregate
principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the Series B Bond to be redeemed. Series
B Bonds need not be presented for mandatory sinking fund redemptions.

(e) Effect of Redemption. From and after the date fixed for redemption, if funds available
for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Series B Bonds so called for redemption
shall have been duly provided, such Series B Bonds so called shall cease to be entitled to any
benefit under this Resolution other than the right to receive payment of the redemption price,
and no interest shall accrue thereon from and after the redemption date specified in such
notice. All Series B Bonds redeemed pursuant to this Section 2.03 shall be canceled and shall be
destroyed by the District.

Section 2.04. Form of Series B Bonds. The Series B Bonds shall be substantially in the
form, with necessary or appropriate variations, omissions and insertions, as permitted or
required by this Resolution, as are set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.

Section 2.05. Execution of Series B Bonds. The Series B Bonds shall be executed on
behalf of the District by the facsimile signatures of the President of its Board and its Clerk who
are in office on the date of adoption of this Resolution or at any time thereafter. If any officer
whose signature appears on any Series B Bond ceases to be such officer before delivery of the
Series B Bonds to the Owner, such signature shall nevertheless be as effective as if the officer
had remained in office until the delivery of the Series B Bonds to the Original Owner. Any
Series B Bond may be signed and attested on behalf of the District by such persons as at the
actual date of the execution of such Series B Bond shall be the proper officers of the District
although at the nominal date of such Series B Bond any such person shall not have been such
officer of the District.

Section 2.06. Transfer of Bonds.

(a) The registration of Bonds may, in accordance with their terms, be transferred in
whole or in part, upon the Bond Register by the person in whose name it is registered, in person
or by his attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender of the Series B Bonds for
cancellation at the Principal Office, accompanied by delivery of a written instrument of
transfer in a form approved by the District, duly executed. Whenever the Series B Bonds shall
be surrendered for registration of transfer, the District shall execute and deliver a Bond for like
aggregate principal amount. The District may require the payment by the Bondowner
requesting such transfer of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with
respect to such transfer. The District shall not be required to transfer (i) the Series B Bonds

7-



during the period between the date fifteen (15) days prior to the date of selection of Bonds for
redemption and such date of selection, or (ii) any Bonds selected for redemption.

(b) Ownership of the Series B Bonds may be transferred in whole or in part but only to a
person that the Bondowner reasonably believes is either:

(A) a qualified institutional buyer within the meaning of Rule 144A
promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

(B) subject to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, an
accredited investor as defined in section 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of Regulation D
promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

(C) a trust, partnership, custodial arrangement or similar entity, interests in
which are offered and sold in a private placement or limited offering only to qualified
institutional buyers or, subject to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, accredited investors; or

(D) an affiliate of the Original Owner.

in each case that executes and delivers to the District an investor letter in substantially the
form attached hereto as Exhibit B; provided, however, if transferred in part, such transfer shall
not be to more than five transferees and in amounts less than $500,000.

Section 2.07. Exchange of Series B Bonds. Series B Bonds may be exchanged at the
Principal Office for a like aggregate principal amount of Series B Bonds of authorized
denominations and of the same maturity. The District shall require the payment by the Owner
requesting such exchange of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with
respect to such exchange.

No exchanges of Series B Bonds shall be required to be made (a) fifteen days prior to
the date established by the District for selection of Series B Bonds for redemption or (b) with
respect to a Series B Bond after such Series B Bond has been selected for redemption.

Section 2.08. Bond Register. The District shall keep or cause to be kept sufficient books
for the registration and transfer of the Series B Bonds, which shall at all times be open to
inspection by the District upon reasonable notice; and, upon presentation for such purpose, the
District shall, under such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, register or transfer or
cause to be registered or transferred, on said books, Series B Bonds as herein before provided.

Section 2.09. Temporary Series B Bonds. The Series B Bonds may be initially issued in
temporary form exchangeable for definitive Series B Bonds when ready for delivery. The
temporary Series B Bonds may be printed, lithographed or typewritten, shall be of such
denominations as may be determined by the District, and may contain such reference to any of
the provisions of this Resolution as may be appropriate. Every temporary Series B Bond shall
be executed by the District upon the same conditions and in substantially the same manner as
the definitive Series B Bonds. If the District issues temporary Series B Bonds it will execute and
furnish definitive Series B Bonds without delay, and thereupon the temporary Series B Bonds
may be surrendered, for cancellation, in exchange therefor at the District and the District shall
deliver in exchange for such temporary Series B Bonds an equal aggregate principal amount of
definitive Series B Bonds of authorized denominations. Until so exchanged, the temporary
Series B Bonds shall be entitled to the same benefits pursuant to this Resolution as definitive
Series B Bonds executed and delivered hereunder.



Section 2.10. Series B Bonds Mutilated, Lost, Destroyed or Stolen. If the Series B Bond
shall become mutilated the District, at the expense of the Owner, shall execute and deliver, a
new Series B Bond in exchange and substitution for the Series B Bond so mutilated, but only
upon surrender to the District of the Series B Bond so mutilated. Every mutilated Series B
Bond so surrendered to the District shall be canceled by it. If any Series B Bond shall be lost,
destroyed or stolen, evidence of such loss, destruction or theft may be submitted to the District
and, if such evidence be satisfactory to the District and indemnity satisfactory to it shall be
given, the District, at the expense of the Owner, shall execute and deliver, a new Series B Bond
of like maturity and principal amount in lieu of and in substitution for the Series B Bond so
lost, destroyed or stolen. The District may require payment of a sum not exceeding the actual
cost of preparing each new Series B Bond issued under this Section 2.07 and of the expenses
which may be incurred by the District in connection therewith. Any Series B Bond issued under
the provisions of this Section 2.07 in lieu of any Series B Bond alleged to be lost, destroyed or
stolen shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation on the part of the District
whether or not the Series B Bond so alleged to be lost, destroyed or stolen be at any time
enforceable by anyone, and shall be equally and proportionately entitled to the benefits of this
Resolution with all other Series B Bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution.




ARTICLE III

ISSUE OF SERIES B BONDS; APPLICATION OF SERIES B BOND PROCEEDS; SECURITY
FOR THE SERIES B BONDS

Section 3.01. Issuance, Award and Delivery of Series B Bonds. At any time after the
execution of this Resolution the District may issue and deliver the Series B Bonds, subject to
the limitations set forth in Section 4.01.

The District Representatives shall be, and are hereby, directed to cause the Series B
Bonds to be printed, signed and delivered to the Owner on receipt of the purchase price
therefor and upon performance of the conditions contained herein.

Section 3.02. Funds and Accounts.

(a) Building Fund. The fund, known as the “Mayers Memorial Hospital District, General
Obligation Bonds, Election of 2014, Series B (2017) Building Fund” (the “Building Fund”), is
hereby created and established with the District. Moneys deposited therein from the proceeds
of the Series B Bonds shall be used solely for the purpose for which the Series B Bonds are
being issued and shall be applied solely to authorized purposes which relate to the acquisition
or improvement of real property and for the payment of Costs of Issuance of the Series B
Bonds if sufficient moneys are available therefor in the Costs of Issuance Fund. The interest
earmned on the moneys deposited to the Building Fund shall be retained in the Building Fund
and used for the purposes thereof. Any amounts remaining on deposit in the Building Fund
and not needed for the purposes of the Series B Bonds shall be withdrawn from the Building
Fund and transferred to Treasurer-Tax Collector for deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund,
to be applied to the payment of Debt Service. The District shall, from time to time, disburse
amounts from the Building Fund to pay costs of the Project. Amounts in the Building Fund
shall be invested so as to be available for the aforementioned disbursements. The District shall
keep a written record of disbursements from the Building Fund. Moneys held in the Building
Fund shall be invested by the District pursuant to law and the investment policy of the
District.

(b) Interest and Sinking Fund. The fund, known as the “Mayers Memorial Hospital
District, General Obligation Bonds Interest and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking
Fund”), previously established and maintained by the Treasurer-Tax Collector for the District
is hereby continued for the Series B Bonds. Moneys deposited therein shall be used only for
payment of principal and interest on all general obligation bonds of the District. If, after
payment in full of all of the District’s general obligation bonds, there remain excess proceeds,
any such excess amounts shall be transferred to the general fund of the District.
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 3.02(b), any excess proceeds of the
Series B Bonds not needed for the authorized purposes set forth herein for which the Series B
Bonds are being issued shall be applied solely in a manner which is consistent with the
requirements of applicable state and federal tax law, including but not limited to the
requirements of federal tax law (if any) relating to the yield at which such proceeds are
permitted to be invested. The interest earned on the moneys deposited to the Interest and
Sinking Fund shall be retained in the Interest and Sinking Fund and used for the purposes
thereof. By receipt of a copy of this resolution, the Treasurer-Tax Collector is hereby requested
to continue and maintain the Interest and Sinking Fund. Moneys held in the Interest and
Sinking Fund shall be invested at the Treasurer-Tax Collector’s discretion, unless otherwise
directed in writing by the District, pursuant to law and the investment policy of the County.

-10-



(c) Costs of Issuance Fund. A fund, to be known as the “Mayers Memorial Hospital
District, General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2010, Series B (2017 Costs of Issuance Fund”
(the “Costs of Issuance Fund”), is hereby created and established with the District. Moneys
deposited therein from the proceeds of the Series B Bonds shall be used solely for the payment
of Costs of Issuance of the Series B Bonds. The District shall keep a written record of
disbursements from the Costs of Issuance Fund. Moneys held in the Costs of Issuance Fund
shall be invested by the District pursuant to law and the investment policy of the District.

Section 3.03. Application of Proceeds of Sale of Series B Bonds.The initial proceeds
received by the District from the sale of the Series B Bonds, being the first advance and first
draw-down, shall be deposited by the District in the Costs of Issuance Fund.

Section 3.04. Security for the Series B Bonds. There shall be levied by the County on all
the taxable property in the District, in addition to all other taxes, a continuing direct and ad
valorem tax annually during the period the Series B Bonds are outstanding in an amount
sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Series B Bonds when due, which moneys
when collected will be placed in the Interest and Sinking Fund of the District, which fund is
irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Series B Bonds when
and as the same fall due. The moneys in the Interest and Sinking Fund, to the extent necessary
to pay the principal of and interest on the Series B Bonds as the same become due and
payable, shall be transferred by the County to the District, as necessary to pay the principal of
and interest on the Series B Bonds. The property taxes and amounts held in the Interest and
Sinking Fund of the District shall immediately be subject to this pledge, and the pledge shall
constitute a lien and security interest which shall be effective, binding, and enforceable against
the District, its successors, creditors and all others irrespective of whether those parties have
notice of the pledge and without the need of any physical delivery, recordation, filing, or
further act. The pledge is an agreement between the District and the Owner in addition to the
statutory lien that exists (as described below), and the Series B Bonds were issued to refinance
one or more capital projects authorized by the voters of the District and not to finance the
general purposes of the District.

Additionally, in accordance with section 53515(a) of the Government Code, the Series B
Bonds shall be secured by a statutory lien on all revenues received pursuant to the levy and
collection of the tax for the payment of bonds authorized by the voters of the District. The lien
shall automatically attach without further action or authorization by the District or the
County. The lien shall be valid and binding from the time the Series B Bonds are executed and
delivered. The revenues received pursuant to the levy and collection of the tax shall be
immediately subject to the lien, and the lien shall automatically attach to the revenues and be
effective, binding, and enforceable against the District, its successors, transferees, and
creditors, and all others asserting rights therein, irrespective of whether those parties have
notice of the lien and without the need for any physical delivery, recordation, filing, or further
act.

-11-



ARTICLE IV
SALE OF BONDS; OFFICIAL ACTION

Section 4.01. Sale of the Series B Bonds. The Board hereby authorizes the negotiated
sale of the Series B Bonds to the Owner.

Section 4.02. Official Action. All actions heretofore taken by the officers and agents of
the District with respect to the sale and issuance of the Series B Bonds are hereby approved,
and the District Representatives, and any and all other officers of the District are hereby
authorized and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the District, to do any and all
things and take any and all actions relating to the execution and delivery of any and all
certificates, requisitions, agreements and other documents, which they, or any of them, may
deem necessary or advisable in order to consummate the lawful issuance and delivery of the
Series B Bonds in accordance with this Resolution.

ations,_The_Series_B_Bon iven_as_evidence_of_a_loan_to_the

gtnct_ma.de_b_z_thg United States of America_pursuant to the Consolidated Farm and Rural
Development_Act_and shall be subject to_the applicable_present regulations of the United
States Department of Agriculture, Rural_Housing Service, and to its applicable future
regulations not inconsistent with the express_provisions hereof.




ARTICLE V
COVENANTS OF THE DISTRICT

Section 5.01. Punctual Payment. The District will punctually pay, or cause to be paid,
the principal of and interest on the Series B Bonds, in strict conformity with the terms of the
Series B Bonds and of this Resolution, and it will faithfully observe and perform all of the
conditions, covenants and requirements of this Resolution and of the Series B Bonds. Nothing
herein contained shall prevent the District from making advances of its own moneys,
howsoever derived, to any of the uses or purposes permitted by law.

Section 5.02. Extension of Time for Payment. In order to prevent any accumulation of
claims for interest after maturity, the District will not, directly or indirectly, extend or consent
to the extension of the time for the payment of any claim for interest on any of the Series B
Bonds and will not, directly or indirectly, approve any such arrangement by purchasing or
funding said claims for interest or in any other manner. In case any such claim for interest shall
be extended or funded, whether or not with the consent of the District, such claim for interest
so extended or funded shall not be entitled, in case of default hereunder, to the benefits of this
Resolution, except subject to the prior payment in full of the principal of all of the Series B
Bonds then Qutstanding and of all claims for interest which shall not have so extended or
funded.

Section 5.03. Protection of Security and Rights of the Owner. The District will preserve
and protect the security of the Series B Bonds and the rights of the Owner, and will warrant
and defend its rights against all claims and demands of all persons. From and after the sale
and delivery of any of the Series B Bonds by the District, the Series B Bonds shall be
incontestable by the District.

Section 5.04. Further Assurances. The District will adopt, make, execute and deliver
any and all such further resolutions, instruments and assurances as may be reasonably
necessary or proper to carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance of this Resolution,
and for the better assuring and confirming unto the Owner of the rights and benefits provided
in this Resolution.

Section 5.05. Tax Covenants.

(a) Private Activity Bond Limitation. The District shall assure that the proceeds of the
Series B Bonds are not so used as to cause the Series B Bonds to satisfy the private business
tests of section 141(b) of the Code or the private loan financing test of section 141(c) of the
Code.

(b) Federal Guarantee Prohibition. The District shall not take any action or permit or
suffer any action to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause any of the Series B
Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code.

(c) Rebate Requirement. The District shall take any and all actions necessary to assure
compliance with section 148(f) of the Code, relating to the rebate of excess investment
eamings, if any, to the federal govemment, to the extent that such section is applicable to the
Series B Bonds.

(d) No Arbitrage. The District shall not take, or permit or suffer to be taken, any action

with respect to the proceeds of the Series B Bonds which, if such action had been reasonably
expected to have been taken, or had been deliberately and intentionally taken, on the date of

13-



issuance of the Series B Bonds would have caused the Series B Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds”
within the meaning of section 148 of the Code.

(e) Maintenance of Tax-Exemption. The District shall take all actions necessary to assure
the exclusion of interest on the Series B Bonds from the gross income of the Owner to the same
extent as such interest is permitted to be excluded from gross income under the Code as in
effect on the date of issuance of the Series B Bonds.



ARTICLE VI
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF BONDOWNERS

Section 6.01. Events of Default. The following events (“Events of Default”) shall be
events of default hereunder:

(a) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of the principal of on any
Series B Bond when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at maturity as
therein expressed, by declaration or otherwise;

(b} if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any installment of
interest on any Series B Bond when and as such interest installment shall become due and
payable;

(c) if default shall be made by the District in the observance of any of the covenants,
agreements or conditions on its part in this Resolution or in the Series B Bonds contained, and
such default shall have continued for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice thereof to
the District; or

(d) if the District shall file a petition seeking recrganization or arrangement under the
federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America, or if a
court of competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition, seeking reorganization of the District
under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of
America, or if, under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court
of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the District or of the whole or any
substantial part of its property.

Section 6.02. Remedies of Owner. The Owner shall have the right:

(a) by mandamus, suit, action or proceeding, to compel the District and its members,
officers, agents or employees to perform each and every term, provision and covenant
contained in this Resolution and in the Series B Bonds, and to require the carrying out of any or
all such covenants and agreements of the District and the fulfillment of all duties imposed
upon it;

(b) by suit, action or proceeding in equity, to enjoin any acts or things which are
unlawful, or the violation of any of the Owner’ rights; or

(c} upon the happening of any Event of Default, by suit, action or proceeding in any
court of competent jurisdiction, to require the District and its members and employees to
account as if it and they were the trustees of an express trust.

Section 6.03. Non-Waiver. Nothing in this Article VII or in any other provision of this
Resolution, or in the Series B Bonds, shall affect or impair the obligation of the District, which
is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of and interest on the Series B Bonds to the
respective Owner at the respective dates of maturity, as herein provided, or affect or impair
the right of action, which is also absolute and unconditional, of such Owner to institute suit to
enforce such payment by virtue of the contract embodied in the Series B Bonds.

A waiver of any default by the Owner shall not affect any subsequent default or impair

any rights or remedies on the subsequent default. No delay or omission of the Owner to
exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or

-15-



shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein, and every
power and remedy conferred upon the Owner by this Article VI may be enforced and exercised
from time to time and as often as shall be deemed expedient by the Owner.

If a suit, action or proceeding to enforce any right or exercise any remedy be abandoned
or determined adversely to the Owner, the District and the Owner shall be restored to their
former positions, rights and remedies as if such suit, action or proceeding had not been
brought or taken.

Section 6.04. Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon the Owner of
Series B Bonds shall be exclusive of any other remedy and that each and every remedy shall be
cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or thereafter
conferred on the Owner.




ARTICLE VII
SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTIONS

Section 7.01. Supplemental Resolutions Effective Without Consent of the Owner. For
any one or more of the following purposes and at any time or from time to time, a
Supplemental Resolution of the District may be adopted, which, without the requirement of
consent of the Owner, shall be fully effective in accordance with its terms:

(a) to add to the covenants and agreements of the District in this Resolution, other
covenants and agreements to be observed by the District which are not contrary to or
inconsistent with this Resolution as theretofore in effect;

{b) to add to the limitations and restrictions in this Resolution, other limitations and
restrictions to be observed by the District which are not contrary to or inconsistent with this
Resolution as theretofore in effect;

(c) to confirm, as further assurance, any pledge under, and the subjection to any lien or
pledge created or to be created by, this Resolution, of any moneys, securities or funds, or to
establish any additional funds or accounts to be held under this Resolution;

(d) to cure any ambiguity, supply and omission, or cure or correct any defect or
inconsistent provision in this Resolution; or

(e) to make such additions, deletions or modifications as may be necessary or desirable
to assure exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the Series B Bonds.

Section 7.02. Supplemental Resolutions Effective With Consent to the Owner. Any
modification or amendment of this Resolution and of the rights and obligations of the District
and of the Owner, in any particular, may be made by a Supplemental Resolution, with the
written consent of the Owner of at least two-thirds in aggregate principal amount of the Series
B Bonds Outstanding at the time such consent is given. No such modification or amendment
shall permit a change in the terms of maturity of the principal of any Outstanding Series B
Bonds or of any interest payable thereon or a reduction in the principal amount thereof or in
the rate of interest thereon, or shall reduce the percentage of Series B Bonds the consent of the
Owner of which is required to effect any such modification or amendment, or shall change any
of the provisions in Section 7.01 hereof relating to Events of Default, or shall reduce the
amount of moneys pledged for the repayment of the Series B Bonds without the consent of all
the Owner of such Series B Bonds.



ARTICLE VIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 8.01. Benefits of Resolution Limited to Parties. Nothing in this Resolution,
expressed or implied, is intended to give to any person other than the District and the Owner,
any right, remedy, claim under or by reason of this Resolution. Any covenants, stipulations,
promises or agreements in this Resolution contained by and on behalf of the District shall be
for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Owner.

Section 8.02. Execution of Documents and Proof of Ownerhip by Owner. Any request,
declaration or other instrument which this Resolution may require or permit to be executed by
Owner may be in one or more instruments of similar tenor, and shall be executed by Owner in
person or by their attorneys appointed in writing.

Except as otherwise herein expressly provided, the fact and date of the execution by the
Owner or its attorney of such request, declaration or other instrument, or of such writing
appointing such attorney, may be proved by the certificate of any notary public or other officer
authorized to take acknowledgments of deeds to be recorded in the state in which he purports
to act, that the person signing such request, declaration or other instrument or writing
acknowledged to him the execution thereof, or by an affidavit of a witness of such execution,
duly swom to before such notary public or other officer.

Except as otherwise herein expressly provided, the ownership of registered Series B
Bonds and the amount, maturity, number and date of holding the same shall be proved by the
registry books.

Section 8.03. Waiver of Personal Liability. No boardmember, officer, agent or employee
of the District shall be individually or personally liable for the payment of the principal of or
interest on the Series B Bonds; but nothing herein contained shall relieve any such
boardmember, officer, agent or employee from the performance of any official duty provided
by law.

Section 8.04. Partial Invalidity. If any Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of
this Resolution shall for any reason be held illegal or unenforceable, such holding shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution. The District hereby declares that
it would have adopted this Resolution and each and every other Section, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase hereof and authorized the issue of the Series B Bonds pursuant thereto
irrespective of the fact that any one or more Sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or
phrases of this Resolution may be held illegal, invalid or unenforceable. If, by reason of the
judgment of any court, the District is rendered unable to perform its duties hereunder, all such
duties and all of the rights and powers of the District hereunder shall be assumed by and vest
in the District in trust for the benefit of the Owner.

Section 8.05. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect from and
after the date of its passage and adoption.




* % % % % ok F

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION is approved and adopted by the Board of Directors
of the Mayers Memorial Hospital District this 28th day of June, 2017.

President of the Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board of Directors

-19-



EXHIBIT A
FORM OF SERIES B BOND

United States of America
State of California
Shasta County

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, ELECTION OF 2010, SERIES B (2017)

| INTERESTRATE: | MATURITYDATE: |  ISSUEDATE: _
A250% . | Septemberl,2047 |  Septemberi52017
REGISTERED OWNER: United States of America acting through the Rural Housing Service
PRINCIPAL SUM: Up to THREE MILLION THIRTY-ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS

The MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT, a health care district, duly organized and
existing under and by virtue of the Constitution and laws of the State of California (the “District”), for value
received hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner stated above (the “Owner”), on the Maturity
Date stated above (subject to any right of prior redemption hereinafter provided for), the Prindipal Sum
stated above, in lawful money of the United States of America, and to pay interest thereon in like lawful
money; provided however, that if at the time of authentication of this Bond, interest is in default on this
Bond, this Bond shall bear interest from the interest payment date to which interest has previously been
paid or made available for payment on this Bond) until payment of such Principal Sum in full, at the rate
per annum stated above, payable on March 1 and September.1 in each year, commencing March 1, 2018,
m%%@@ﬂd&vﬂam&d The principal hereof and interest
hereon is the Owner through a Pre-Authorized Debt Payment Process arranged by the District with the
Owner.

This Bond may be issued, authenticated and delivered in several increments (each such issuance,
authentication and delivery referred to herein as an “Advance”). The date and amount of each Advance
shall be listed in Schedule A attached hereto In no case may the total of Advances for the Bonds exceed the
Maximum Principal Amount set forth above.

This Bond is issued by the District and designated as “Mayers Memeorial Hospital District (Shasta
County, California) General Obligation Bonds, Election of 2010, Series B (2017)" (the “Bonds”), in an
aggregate prindipal amount of up to three million thirty-one thousand dollars (§3,031,000), pursuant to the
provisions of Chapter 4 of Division 23 (commencing with section 32300} of the California Health and Safety
Code (the “Act”), and pursuant to Resolution No. __ of the District adopted June 28,2017 (the “Resolution”),
authorizing the issuance of the Bonds. Reference is hereby made to the Resolution (copies of which are on
file at the office of the Clerk of the Board of Directors of the District) and the Act for a description of the terms
on which the Bonds are issued and the rights thereunder of the Owner, to all of the provisions of which
Resolution the Owner hereby assents and agrees.

The Bonds are being issued to (a) finance projects authorized by the voters of the District on
November 2, 2010, and (c) pay for costs of issuance of the Bonds.

This Bond and the interest hereon is the general obligation of the District and do not constitute an
obligation of the County of Shasta. The District has the power and is obligated to cause the Shasta County
Board of Supervisors to levy ad valorem taxes for the payment of the Bonds and the interest thereon upon all
property within the District subject to taxation by the District. No part of any fund of the County is pledged
or obligated to the payment of the Bonds.

Exhibit A
Page i



The Bonds are callable for redemption prior to their stated maturity date at the option of the District,
as a whole, or in part on any date and may be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof by payment of all
principal, plus accrued interest to date of redemption, without premium.

The Bonds are also subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on September.1 in the years, and
in the amounts, as set forth in the following table, at a redemption price equal to one hundred percent
(100%) of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed (without premium), together with interest accrued
thereon to the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, that if some but not all of the Bonds have been
redeemed pursuant to the preceding paragraph, the aggregate principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed
under this paragraph shall be reduced on a pro rata basis in integral multiples of $5,000, as shall be
designated pursuant to written notice filed by the District with the Owner:

Sinking Fund Principal Sinking Fund Principal
Eedemption Date Amounttobe Redemption Date Amounttobe
{September 1) Redeemed {September 1} Redeemed
2020 68,000 2034 $106,000
2021 70,000 2035 110,000
2022 £3.000 2036 113,000
2023 72,000 2037 117,000
2024 77,000 2038 121,000
2025 80,000 2039 125,000
2026 82,000 2040 125,000
2027 85,000 2041 133,000
2028 88.000 2042 137,000
2029 91,000 2043 142,000
2030 94,000 2044 147,000
2031 97,000 2045 151,000
2032 100,000 2046 156,000
2033 103,000 20471 161,000

tMaturity
The District shall give notice of the redemption of the Bonds. Such notice shall specify: (a) that the

Bonds or a designated portion thereof are to be redeemed, (b) the date of notice and the date of redemption,
(d) the place or places where the redemption will be made, and (e) descriptive information regarding the
Bonds including the dated date, interest rate and stated maturity date. Such notice shall further state that on
the specified date there shall become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed, the portion of the
principal amount of such Bond to be redeemed, together with interest accrued to said date, and that from
and after such date interest with respect thereto shall cease to accrue and be payable.

If an Event of Default, as defined in the Resolution, shall occur, the principal of all Bonds may be
declared due and payable upon the conditions, in the manner and with the effect provided in the
Resolution, but such declaration and its consequences may be rescinded and annulled as further provided
in the Resolution.

The Bonds are issuable as one fully registered bond, without coupons. Subject to the limitations and
condlitions and upon_payment of the charges, if any, as provided in the Resolution, Bonds may be
exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other autheorized denominations,

The District may treat the Owner hereof as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, and the
District shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

The Resolution may be amended without the consent of the Owner to the extent set forth in the
Resolution.

This Bonds is given as evidence of a loan te the District made by the United States of America
pursuant to the Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act and shall be s subject to the applicable
present regulations of the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Housing Service, and to its
applicable future regulations not inconsistent with the express provisions hereof,

Exhibit A
Page 2




It is hereby certified that all of the things, conditions and acts required to exist, to have happened or
tohave been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond do exist, have happened or have been
performed in due and regular time and manner as required by the laws of the State of California, and that
the amount of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the District, does not exceed any limit
prescribed by any laws of the State of California, and is not in excess of the amount of Bonds permitted to be
issued under the Resolution.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayers Memorial Hospital District has caused this Bond to be
executed in its name and on its behalf with the facsimile signatures of the President of its Board of Directors
and the Clerk of the Board of Directors, all as of the Issue Date stated above.

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
By

President of the Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board of Directors

ExhibitA
Page 3



SCHEDULE A

SCHEDULE OF ADVANCES
Date of Amount of Total of All District
Advance Advance Advances Signature
Exhibit A

Page 4



EXHIBIT B
FORM OF PURCHASER'S LETTER

Mayers Memorial Hospital District
Fall River Mills, California

Re: Mayers Memorial Hospital District (Shasta County, California) General Obligation Bonds,
Election of 2010, Series B (2017)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned (the “Purchaser”), being the Purchaser of the above-referenced bonds (the
“Bonds”) issued pursuant to Article 45 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 (commencing with
section 53506) of the California Government Code {the “Act”), Resolution No. ,adopted by the Board of
Trustees of the Mayers Memorial Hospital District (the “Bistrict”) on June 28, 2017 (the “Resolution”), does
hereby certify, represent and warrant for the benefit of the District that:

(a) The Purchaser (MARK OR INDICATE APPRCPRIATELY):

[__] isa qualified institutional buyer” {(a “Qualified Institutional Buyer”) within the
meaning of Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
ACt"),

[__] isan “accredited investor” as defined in Section 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of Regulation
D promulgated under the Securities Act (an “Accredited Investor”), or

[__] isa trust, parmership, custodial arrangement or similar entity, interests in which
are offered and sold in a private placement or limited offering only to Qualified Institutional Buyers
or Accredited Investors.

[_] isan affiliate of

(b) The Purchaser understands that the Bonds have not been registered under the
United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or under any state securities laws. The Purchaser
agrees that it will comply with any applicable state and federal securities laws then in effect with
respect to any disposition of the Bonds by it, and further acknowledges that any current exemption
from registration of the Bonds does not affect or diminish such requirements.

(c) The Purchaser is not now and has never been controlled by, or under common
control with, the District. The District has never been and is not now controlled by the Purchaser.
The Purchaser has entered into no arrangements with the District or with any affiliate in connection
with the Bonds, other than as disclosed to the District.

(d) The Purchaser has authority to purchase the Bonds and to execute this letter and
any other instruments and documents required to be executed by the Purchaser in connection with
the purchase of the Bonds. The individual who is signing this letter on behalf of the Purchaser is a
duly appointed, qualified, and acting officer of the Purchaser and is authorized to cause the
Purchaser to make the Bonds, representations and warranties contained herein by execution of this
letter on behalf of the Purchaser.

(e) The Purchaser understands that the Bonds are not secured by any pledge of any
moneys received or to be received from taxation by the District, the State of California or any
political subdivision or taxing District thereof; that the Bonds will never represent or constitute a
general obligation or a pledge of the faith and credit of the District, the State of California or any
political subdivision thereof; that no right will exist to have taxes levied by the State of California or

ExhibitB
Page1



any political subdivision thereof for the payment of principal and interest with respect to the Bonds;
and that the liability of the District with respect to the Bonds is subject to further limitations as set
forth in the Resolution.

(H) The Purchaser has been informed that the Bonds (i) have not been and will not be
registered or otherwise qualified for sale under the “Blue Sky” laws and regulations of any
jurisdiction, and (ii) will notbe listed on any stock or other securities exchange.

(®) The Purchaser acknowledges that it has the right to sell and transfer the Bonds,
subject to compliance with the transfer restrictions set forth in Section 2.06 of the Resolution,
including in certain circumstances the requirement for the delivery to the District of an investor’s
letter in the same form as this Investor’s Letter, including this paragraph. Failure to comply with
the provisions of Section 2.06 of the Resolution shall cause the purported transfer to be null and
void.

(h} The Purchaser acknowledges that the Bonds are exempt from the requirements of
Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission and that the District has not undertaken to
provide any continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds.

The Purchaser acknowledges that the sale of the Bonds to the Purchaser is made in reliance upon
the certifications, representations and warranties herein by the addressees hereto. Capitalized terms used
herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings given such terms in the Resolution.

[PURCHASER]

By
Name

Exhibit B
Page 2



EXHIBIT C
FORM OF ADVANCE REQUEST

- EE—

Mayers Memorial Hospital District
(Shasta County, California)
General Obligation Bonds,

Election of 2010, Series B (2017)

ADVANCE REQUEST

The undersigned hereby states and certifies:

(i) that the undersigned is the duly appointed, qualified and acting
of the Mayers Memorial Hospital District, a healthcare district duly organized and existing
under the laws of the State of California (the “District”), and as such, is familiar with the facts
herein certified and is authorized to certify the same on behalf of the District;

(ii) that the undersigned is a duly designated District Representative, as such term
is defined in Resolution No. __, adopted by the Board of Trustees of the District on June 28,
2017 (the “Resolution”);

(iii)  that the District hereby requests that United States of America, acting through
the Rural Housing Service, as initial Owner (as defined in the Resolution”), advance the sum of
$ to the District, being a draw-down and additional purchase price of the Series B
Bonds (as defined in the Resolution), as contemplated by the Resolution, with interest to
accrue on such amount when advanced;

(iv)  that such advance will be applied to the payment or reimbursement of the costs
of the Project (as defined in the Resolution) listed on Exhibit A attached to this Advance
Request;

(v)  that no Event of Default has occurred or is continuing under the Resolution and
each representation and warranty set forth in such documents remains true and correct except
for such representations and warranties that are no longer true due to the passage of time;

(vi)  that the total amount drawn down to date is $

(vii)  that this advance request [IS] [IS NOT] the final advance request.

ExhibitC
Pagel



Dated: ;20 MAYERS MEMORIAL HIQSPITAL
DISTRICT
By
Name
Title
APPROVED:
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ACTING
THROUGH THE RURAL HOUSING
SERVICE
By ___
Name
Title
ExhibitC

Page 2



Quint & Thimmig LLP 06/20/17

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 3J/9-/0

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FORM AND AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION OF CERTAIN LEASE FINANCING DOCUMENTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING AND SALE OF CERTIFICATES OF
PARTICIPATION RELATING THERETO TO FINANCE CAPITAL PROJECTS
AND REFINANCE PRIOR OBLIGATIONS AND AUTHORIZING AND
DIRECTING CERTAIN ACTIONS WITH RESPECT THERETO

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Mayers Memorial Hospital
District (the “District”), as follows:

WHEREAS, the District, working with Municipal Asset Management, Inc., has
heretofore caused the execution and delivery of the $2,000,000 Certificates of Participation
(2011 Financing Project)(the “2011 Certificates”), representing undivided fractional interests of
the owners thereof in note payments to be made by the District, delivered to refinance certain
outstanding obligations of the District;

WHEREAS, the 2011 Certificates are currently outstanding in the principal amount of
$1,765,000;

WHEREAS, the District, with the assistance of the Public Property Financing
Corporation of California (the “Corporation”), has determined at this time, due to prevailing
interest rates in the municipal bond market and for other reasons, to refund the 2011
Certificates and to finance construction of a new wing to replace the seismically noncompliant
original hospital wing that has the Emergency, Laboratory and Radiology Departments,
enabling the District to meet state seismic requirements and remain operational past January
1, 2020 (the “Project”), and to implement a lease financing for such purposes; and

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest and for the public benefit that the District
authorize and direct execution of the Lease Agreement (hereinafter defined) and certain other
financing documents in connection therewith; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to a letter of conditions, dated August 27, 2015, the United
States of America, acting through the Rural Housing Service (the “Purchaser”), has purchase
obligations of the District evidenced by the Certificates of Participation (hereinafter defined);
and

WHEREAS, the documents below specified shall be filed with the District and the
members of the Board, with the aid of its staff, shall review said documents.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ORDERED and DETERMINED, as follows:

Section 1. Certificates of Participation, Series A (2017 Capital Improvement Project)
(the “Series A Certificates”) are hereby authorized to be executed and delivered pursuant to
the provisions of the Trust Agreement (as hereinafter defined), to finance a portion of the
Project. Certificates of Participation, Series B (2017 Capital Improvement and Refinancing
Project) (the “Series B Certificates” and, with the Series A Certificates, the “Certificates”) are
hereby authorized to be executed and delivered pursuant to the provisions of the Trust
Agreement, to finance the remaining portion of the Project and to refund the 2011 Certificates.

13036.05



Section 3. The below-enumerated documents, in the forms on file with the Secretary, be
and are hereby approved, and the President, the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial
Officer, or the designee thereof, or the assignee of any such official (each, a “Designated
Officer”), are hereby authorized and directed to execute said documents, with such changes,
insertions and omissions as may be approved by such officials, and the Secretary is hereby
authorized and directed to attest to such official’s signature:

(a) a site and facility lease, by and between the District, as lessor, and the Corporation,
as lessee, pursuant to which the District will lease certain existing property and improvements
thereon (the “Property”} to the Corporation, for the purpose of leasing the Property to the
District pursuant to the Lease Agreement;

(b) a lease agreement relating to the Property, between the Corporation, as lessor, and
the District, as lessee (the “Lease Agreement”), so long as the principal amount of the Lease
Agreement is not greater than $14,200,000, the interest rate payable with respect to the Lease
Agreement does not exceed 3.25% and the Lease Agreement shall be for a term ending no later
than September 1, 2057; and

(c} a trust agreement, by and among the Corporation, the District and the Mayers
Memorial Hospital District Treasurer, as trustee (the “Trustee”), relating to the execution and
delivery of the Certificates (the “Trust Agreement”).

Section 4. The President, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the
Secretary and all other appropriate officials of the District are hereby authorized and directed
to execute such other agreements, documents and certificates as may be necessary to effect the
purposes of this resolution and the financing herein authorized. B

Section 10. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption by this Board.

% 3% % % o ok o o ok X % 4

I, the undersigned hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly
adopted and passed by the Board Directors of the Mayers Memorial Hospital District in a
regular meeting assembled on the 28th day of June, 2017, by the following vote to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTENTIONS:

President

Attest:
Secretary



Quint & Thimmig LLP 06/2017

PUBLIC PROPERTY FINANCING CORPORATION OF CALIFORNIA
RESOLUTION NoO. 20/7 /05

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FORM AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
OF CERTAIN LEASE FINANCING DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE
OFFERING AND SALE OF CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION RELATING
THERETO TO FINANCE AND REFINANCE CAPITAL PROJECTS FOR THE
MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT AND AUTHORIZING AND
DIRECTING CERTAIN ACTIONS WITH RESPECT THERETO

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Public Property Financing
Corporation of California (the “Corporation”):

WHEREAS, the Mayers Memorial Hospital District (the “District”), working with
Municipal Asset Management, Inc., has heretofore caused the execution and delivery of the
$2,000,000 Certificates of Participation (2011 Financing Project)(the “2011 Certificates”),
representing undivided fractional interests of the owners thereof in note payments to be made
by the District, delivered to refinance certain outstanding obligations of the District;

WHEREAS, the 2011 Certificates are currently outstanding in the principal amount of
$1,765,000;

WHEREAS, the District, with the assistance of the Corporation, has determined at this
time, due to prevailing interest rates in the municipal bond market and for other reasons, to
refund the 2011 Certificates and to finance construction of a new wing to replace the
seismically noncompliant original hospital wing that has the Emergency, Laboratory and
Radiology Departments, enabling the District to meet state seismic requirements and remain
operational past January 1, 2020 (the “Project”), and to implement a lease financing for such
purposes; and

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest and for the public benefit that the Corporation
authorize and direct execution of the Lease Agreement (hereinafter defined) and certain other
financing documents in connection therewith; and

WHEREAS, the documents below specified shall be filed with the Corporation and the
members of the Board, with the aid of its staff, shall review said documents;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby DECLARED and ORDERED, as follows:

Section 1. Certificates of Participation, Series A (2017 Capital Improvement Project)
(the “Series A Certificates”) are hereby authorized to be executed and delivered pursuant to
the provisions of the Trust Agreement (as hereinafter defined), to finance a portion of the
Project. Certificates of Participation, Series B (2017 Capital Improvement and Refinancing
Project) (the “Series B Certificates” and, with the Series A Certificates, the “Certificates”) are
hereby authorized to be executed and delivered pursuant to the provisions of the Trust
Agreement, to finance the remaining portion of the Project and to refund the 2011 Certificates.

Section 2. The below-enumerated documents, in the forms on file with the Secretary, be

and are hereby approved, and the President, the Treasurer and the Secretary are each hereby
authorized and directed to execute said documents, with such changes, insertions and

13036.05



omissions as may be approved by such official, the execution thereof to be conclusive evidence
of such approval

(a) a site and facility lease, by and between the District, as lessor, and the Corporation,
as lessee, pursuant to which the District will lease certain existing property and improvements
thereon (the “Property”) to the Corporation, for the purpose of leasing the Property to the
District pursuant to the Lease Agreement;

(b) a lease agreement relating to the Property, between the Corporation, as lessor, and
the District, as lessee (the “Lease Agreement”);

{c) an assignment agreement, by and between the Corporation and the Mayers
Memorial Hospital District Treasurer, as trustee (the “Trustee”), pursuant to which the
Corporation will assign certain of its rights under the Lease Agreement, including its right to
receive lease payments thereunder, to the Trustee; and

{d) a trust agreement, by and among the Corporation, the District and the Trustee,
relating to the execution and delivery of the Certificates (the “Trust Agreement”);

Section 3. The President, the Treasurer, the Secretary and other officials of the
Corporation are hereby authorized and directed to execute such other agreements, documents
and certificates as may be necessary to effect the purposes of this resolution and the lease
financing herein authorized.

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption by the Board.

LR R R E R RN R RN

I, the undersigned hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly
adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the Public Property Financing Corporation of
California in a regular meeting assembled on the day of , 2017, by the
following vote to wit:

YAES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTENTIONS:

Secretary



ATTRCHM ERLNT F

Board of Directors
Chief Executive Officer Michael D. Kerns, President
Louis Ward, MHA Beatriz Vasquez, PhD,
Vice President
Abe Hathaway, Secretary
Allen Albaugh, Treasurer
Laura Beyer, Director

Mayers Memorial Hospital District

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

Medical Imaging Equipment
Package and Individual

RFP 1-1

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF — 1-1

P.O. Box 459 - 43563 Highway 299 East, Fall River Mills, CA 96028 Tel, {530) 336-5511 Fax (530) 336-6199
hittp: /{wwew. mayersmemorial,com



2|

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1,

1.2,

1.3.

2. VENDOR INFORMATION
2.1,

TABLE OF CONTENTS

OVERMIEW...... i . sl coisl S inang, oot e o e e oo B0 150 20 o e L5

1.1.1. PURPOSE FOR THEIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
1.1.2. MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT OVERVIEW

INFORMATION GOVERING DOCUMENT TO BE SUBMITTED............cvueunnee

1.2.1. PROPOSAL RESPOSE DELIVERY

1.2.2. DATE AND TIME OF SUBMISSION

1.2.3. CONTACT FOR ISSUES AND INFORMATION REQUESTS
1.2.4. USE AND ISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

1.2.5. ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF SUBMISSIONS
1.2,6. SUPPLIERS' COST FOR DOCUMENT DEVELOPMENT
1.2.7. RETURN OF RFP

1.2.8. PROPOSAL VALIDITY

1.2.9. RFP EVALUATION PROCESS

1.210. CONTRACT EVALUATION AND AWARD

1.2.11. CONTRACT DEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION

DOCUMENT PREPARATION AND PROPOSAL FORMAT........ccoovevinininiinnnee

1.3.1. POINT BY POINT RESPONSE

1.3.2. PROPOSAL BINDING

1.3.3. PROPOSAL TIMELINE

1.3.4. SUBMISSION OF AND RESPOSE TO WRITTEN QUESTIONS
1.3.5. SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL

1.3.6. TERM

VENDORS CORPORATE PROFILE
2.1.1.VENDORS PROFILE
2.1.2. FINACNIAL INFORMATION

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF — 1-1

........................................................................................

........

............................................................................



3|°
2.1.3. STANDARD OF PERFORMACE
2.1.4. WORK SCHEDULE
2.1.5.SECURITY
2.1.6. REFERENCE ACCOUNTS
2.1.7. CERTIFICATION
2.1.8.LICENSE, PERMITS AND/OR CERTIFICATIONS
3. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS ...........ovivvieoieeeemeeesesenesosesaosesessoseseseseseesaresesesonns
3.1. SPECIFIC CRITERIA
3.1.1.PROJECT CONTENTS

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF — 1-1



4
1.INTRODUCTION

1.1 OVERVIEW
1.1.1 PURPOSE FOR THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

This RFP outlines Mayers Memorial Hospital Districts (hereinafter, MMHD) management’s
desire to conduct a formal request for proposal for the purchase of Medical Imaging
Equipment Package for the MMHD 2018 / 2019 expansion project.

1.1.2 MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT OVERVIEW

MMHD is a healthcare district comprised of two facilities-Mayers Memorial Hospital and the
Bumey Annex. MMHD has a total number of 121 beds between both facilities which serve the
Intermountain Area.

Mission Statement - Mayers Memorial Hospital District serves the Intermountain area
providing outstanding patient-centered healthcare to improve quality of life through
dedicated, compassionate staff and innovative technology.

Vision - The vision of Mayers Memorial Hospital District is to become the provider of first
choice for our community by being a leader in rural healthcare.

Organizational Values - Teamwork. Leadership. Commitment. Quality. Responsibility.
Safety.

MMDH is an essential part of the healthcare system of the intermountain area providing
comprehensive, quality care to the residents and visitors of all ages, faiths and races in a rural
setting.

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF — 1-1



1.2 INFORMATION GOVERNING DOCUMENTS TO BE
SUBMITTED

1.2.1 PROPOSAL RESPOSE DELIVERY

e Submit one (1) original and three (3) copies of your proposal response to:
Ryan Harris
Director of Operations
Mayers Memoria!l Hospital District
PO BOX 459
Fall River Mills, CA96028

1.2.2 DATE AND TIME OF SUBMISSION

Response must be received on or before Monday June 191, 4pm PDT. Proposals received
after the due date me be rejected by MMHD.

1.2.3 CONTACT FOR ISSUES AND INFORMATION REQUESTS

All inquiries conceming this RFP and/or requests for additional information should be directed
in writing to:

Ryan Harris

Director of Operations

Mayers Memorial Hospital District
PO BOX 459

Fall River Mills, CA96028

Email: rharris@mayersmemorial.com

Phone: (530) 336-7556

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF — 1-1



6]F
1.2.4 USE AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

MMHD will consider all responses to this RFP as confidential and proprietary to the vendor
submitting the request. The information contained in the RFP is proprietary to Mayers
Memorial Hospital District and must be treated by responders as confidential. The information
is to be used by each vendor only for the purpose of preparing a response to the RFP. The
information shall not be used or shared with other parties for any other purpose without
MMHD's written permission.

Any document submitted which is identified as confidential information must be marked on
the outside as containing confidential information, and each page upon which confidential
information appears must be marked as containing confidential information.

1.2.5 ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF SUBMISSIONS

MMHD reserves the right to reject any part of or all submissions, to waive technicalities or
iregularities, and to accept any response it determines to be in MMHD's best interest. The
acceptance of any submission shall not in any way cause MMHD to incur any liability or
obligation to the vendor, financial or otherwise.

MMHD reserves the right to contact vendors after the submission of proposals for the purpose
of clarifying a proposal and to ensure mutual understanding. Such contact for clarification will
not allow the vendor to modify or amend its proposal. All contact with vendor for clarification
purposes will be made in writing. All vendor responses will be in writing.

1.2.6 SUPPLIERS’ COST FOR DOCUMENT DEVELOPMENT

Costs for developing the response to this RFP are entirely the responsibility of the vendor
party and shall not be chargeable in any manner to MMHD.

1.2.7 RETURN OF RFP

In the event your company receives a hard copy of this RFP and decides not to submit a
response to this RFP, it is requested that you retum the RFP, in its entirety, to MMHD within
10 days of receipt without retaining any copies, and provide to us, in writing, your notice of
intent not to respond.

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF — 1-1



7|
1.2.8 PROPOSAL VALIDITY

Your company’s response must be valid for 60 days from the date of acceptance, as opposed
to 60 days from the date of submission. Acceptance will be defined as MMHD selecting you
as our provider of service for the intent of negotiating a contract for services.

1.2.9 RFP EVALUATION PROCESS

A review team will be assembled by MMHD to evaluate all completed responses. Each
proposal will be evaluated relative to a list of selected and weighted criteria. The following
ilustrates the criteria that will be used in the evaluation process:

Cost of Products (individual and package) 30

Quality of Products 15
Ease of Use 15
Service Levels 15
Price of Service Levels 15
Vendors’ Reference List 5
Thoroughness of RFP 5

The proposals will be opened within 5 business days after the due date of the proposais.
Proposals will be evaluated to select a successful vendor to negotiate a contract to be
awarded by MMHD's Chief Executive Office or Board contingent upon USDA approval. No
proposal or contract is binding on MMHD until an award is made by MMHD’s Chief Executive
Office or Board and approved by USDA. The proposals submitted in response to the RFP will
remain confidential until a notice of award by the Board is announced.

1.2.10 CONTRACT EVALUATION AND AWARD
MMHD reserves the right to execute one of the foliowing options:

¢ Issue a Notice of Award by MMHD’s Chief Executive Office or Board contingent upon
USDA approval upon successful negotiation of a contract.

e |ssue no Notice of Award of a contract and issue a new RFP.

The vendor should be aware that MMHD shali perform a “best value analysis” and the
selection for award shall be made to the vendor whose proposal is the most advantageous to
MMHD, taking into consideration the technical factors listed above and total proposed price.

MMHD has no obligation to reveal the basis for contract award or to provide any information
to vendors relative to the evaluation or decision-making process. Ali participating vendors will
be notified promptly of RFP acceptance or rejection.

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF — 1-1



1.2.11 CONTRACT NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION

It is the intent of MMHD that, after the successful vendor has been seiected MMHD and the
selected vendor will enter into contract negotiations containing all terms and conditions of the
proposed service. Any acceptance of a proposal is contingent upon the execution of a written
contact and MMHD shall not be contractually bound to any vendor prior to the execution of
such written contractual agreement approved by MMHD's Chief Executive Office or Board
and approved by USDA.

1.3 DOCUMENT PREPARATION AND PROPOSAL FORMAT
1.3.1 POINT BY POINT RESPONSE

The vendor must respond to each section of the RFP. Proposals should provide a
straightforward, concise description of the vendor's capability to satisfy the requirement of the
request. Vendors should, however, include enough information in their response to assure
MMHD that the vendor understands the requirement.

1.3.2 PROPOSAL BINDING

Proposals shall be type written on 8.5' x 11" paper (one side only). Pages of the proposal
must be numbered, indicate the RFP number and include a table of contents. Proposals must
be accompanied by a transmittal letter signed by the vendor or an individual authorized by the
vendor.

The letter shall include the vendor's mailing address, telephone number, cell or fax number
and email address. Proposal must be securely bound and the official name of the firm
submitting the proposal on the outside front cover.

1.3.3 PROPOSAL TIMELINE

RFP Issued May 14%, 2017

Final Date to Submit Written Inquiries To MMHD June 11th, 2017
Final Date for MMHD to respond to said Inquiries by 12:00 PM PDT June 12th, 2017
Proposals Due Before or Until 4:00 PM PDT June 19", 2017
Issued Notice of Selection July 9%, 2017
Estimated Notice of award by CEO or Board {contingent on USDA Approval) July 28", 2017
USDA Approval TBD

Begin Contract Negotiations TBD

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF — 1-1



9|F

1.3.4 SUBMISSION OF AND RESPONSE TO WRITTEN QUESTIONS

All inquiries, including any questions related to the terms and conditions of this RFP shall be
made in writing and submitted to the RFP contact at the address noted above. Verbal inquiries
will not be accepted. Allinquiries must be received by email to the RFP contact, no later than
5pm on April 19 2017, MMHD's written response to questions will be sent out via email to
all vendors and will not identify the vendor who submitted the question.

1.3.5 SUBMISSION OF PROPOSAL

The RFP contact must receive proposals no later than 4:00 PM PDT. Any proposal received
after the deadline will be rejected and returned to the vendor. Vendors mailing proposals must
allow ample mail delivery time to ensure timely receipt of their proposal. it is the vendor's
responsibility to ensure that the proposal is received prior to the deadline. Postmarking by the
due date will not substitute for actual receipts of the proposal by MMHD. Electronic mail or
faxed proposals will not be accepted.

1.3.6 TERM

Delivery of equipment will be established at a later date depending on construction schedule
and are subject to change.

Acceptance of terms and conditions. Each vendor shall specifically stipulate that the proposal
signifies the acceptance of all terms and conditions stated in the RFP.

If the vendor objects to any term or condition, it shali make specific reference to the section of
the RFP being objected to. Objections/responses that alter the RFP shall be deemed non-
responsive and MAY disqualify the vendor.

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF - 1-1



10| ¢

2. VENDORS’S INFORMATION

2.1 VENDOR’S CORPORATE PROFILE
2.1.1 VENDOR'S PROFILE

Provide your company's full legal name, corporate mailing address and phone number.
Indicate whether you are a corporation, sole proprietorship or partnership, or other creation
and if you are a subsidiary of a parent company, any mergers or acquisitions.

Indicate whether vendor has been disciplined, admonished, wared, had its license,
registration certification or any similar authorization to do business suspended or revoked for
any reason.

Identify any pending administrative, civil, criminal proceedings brought against the vendor
within the last five years and, if any, provide the following information: (a) a clear and
concise statement of all allegations against the vendor, its officers, agents and orfor
employees and (b) the status of the actions.

2.1.2 FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Provide financial information on your company such as annual report 2 years.
2.1.3 STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE

Vendor is expected to use their best efforts, skills, judgements and abilities to perform as
specified by the job requirements and to meet all standards of vendor's profession and
business requirements.

All changes to contract terms or functions must be in writing.

The vendor is responsible for the completion of all work. All work is subject to inspection by
MMHD's Chief and/or Director Team. MMHD may employ all reasonable means tc ensure
that the work is progressing and being performed in compliance with the job task. Should
the Chief and or Director team determine that corrections are necessary in order to
accomplish its intent the vendor may be directed to make changes.

Substantial failure of the vendor to perform the contract may cause MMHD to terminate the
contract.

Vendor will follow the work practices, policies and procedures of MMHD.

Vendor will guarantee all work. Terms and conditions are negotiable.

2.1.4 WORK SCHEDULE

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF — 1-1



M

In general, the vendor must have the ability to plan work schedules, as well as be flexible
enough to change schedules to meet MMHD needs.

2.1.5 SECURITY
Vendor agrees to follow all MMHD safety and Security Policies.
2.1.6 Reference Accounts

Please provide letters of references from at least three (3) previous clients knowledgeable of
the vendor’s performance of the serviced described in this RPF and a contact person's
telephone number for each reference. Provide information such as how many machines,
services provided, length of service etc.

Identify other projects in which the vendor is currently providing or has provided similar
services described in the RFP.

Steve weather, if during the preceding three (3) year period, vendor has defaulted on any
contract; provide a description of the facts and circumstances of the default, and provide the
name, address, telephone number of a contact person with the entity whom vendor had the
contract.

State whether, if during the preceding three-year period, vendor has terminated a contract
prior to the expiration of the stated contract term or has had a contract terminated by the
other party prior to its stated term; provide all such contracts; provide a description of the
facts and circumstances of each termination, provide a description of the facts and
circumstances of each termination, and provide the name, address, telephone number of a
contact person with the entity with whom vendor had the contract.

2.1.7 CERTIFICATION

Vendor shall sign and submit with the proposal a certification stating that the proposal was
developed independently and that no relationship exists or will exist, in the contract period
between vendor and MMHD that interferes with fair competition, or is a conflict of interest.

2.1.8 LICENSE, PERMITS AND/OR CERTIFICATIONS

Vendor shall ensure and maintain all necessary licenses, permits and/or certifications
required by Federal and Califomnia Laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations for the life of the
contract and any renewal thereof. The vendor shall immediately notify MMHD of loss or
suspension of any such licenses, permits and/or certifications. Failures fo maintain required
licenses, permits and/or certification may result in immediate termination of the awarded
contract.

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF - 1-1



121
3. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS
3.1 SPECIFIC CRITERIA

Each proposal submitted must include the following:

The proposal must name all persons or entities interested in the proposal as principals. In
the case of a firm or corporation, state the names and address of its officers. Proposals shall
be signed by the person or member of the firm making the proposal, and in the case of a
corporation, by an authorized officer or agent subscribing the name of the corporation and
his or her own name. The proposal must declare that it is made without collusion with any
other person or entity submitting a proposal pursuant to this RFP.

The proposal must outline the procedure for upgrading equipment to the newest generation
in the event that a new gen unit comes out, or a product line is discontinued between the
time of award and install.

3.1.1 PROJECT CONTENTS

This is a "Brand Name or Equal” Solicitation, please see below for essential physical,
functional, and other characteristics that have been deemed essential in meeting MMHD's
need and are the minimum acceptable specifications.

Brand name or Equal to: Philips Medical, Siemens, or GE equipment:
General Radiographic and Fluoroscopy Room (R & F Room)
o (Insert Specifics)
Portable X-Ray
o (Insert Specifics)
Portable C-Arm
¢ (Insert Specifics)
Optional Computerized Tomography (CT)
¢ (Insert Specifics)
Optional Ultrasound with separate funding
s (Insert Specifics)

MMHD is interested in obtaining your best net pricing and discount structure for both the
complete package and individual units for the above listed equipment.

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF — 1-1



13|

Please provide pricing for a direct capital purchase. If you offer more than one
system, we would be interested in obtaining pricing for all the systems you market
and / or sell that is equal to our equipment listing.

The system should include pricing for options and enhancements available, in-
service, and training.

Include any pertinent service and maintenance agreements, both full service and
“time and materials”, software upgrades (going forward discounts for same),
installation, rigging and Hardware, as applicable.

Price to move our current CT from its current mobile trailer to the new CT room in the
expansion project.

Include operators and service manuals.

List any option and accessories, which may be included in the system or installed
later.

Provide warranty information.
Provide product literature.

Provide a comprehensive quotation contain specifications, list price, discounts, and
net cost, per line item.

Include but not limited to all cabling, water, electrical, etc. requirements.

Mayers Memorial Hospital District | Confidential | RPF - 1-1






P

:2unjeudis

00T/89 oot/ 00T/t8~—0___ [00T/26—" 00T/8L |elog
S/s s/ s/s s/s s/s d4Y Jo ssauydnouioy)
ST/0 st/ st/ot ST/ST S1/0T 39AD 3§17 Adojouyaa) s) Ul uoisod s1anposd
ST/2T St/ ST/TT ST/s1 ST/01 S|2A37 321AISS JO 32114
ST/ET St/ ST/TT ST/t ST/T1 S|9AS7 3DINIIS
01/0T ot/ 01/8 ot/ot ot/L 35N jo aseq
ST/01 St/ ST/ET S1/stT ST/ST s1onpoud jo Ayenp
Sz/81 st/ Y4474 sz/ie sz/oz {a8exoed pue |enpialpul) s3onpoud Jo 350D
3100¢ Aely 3100¢ HoelH 34026 sd||iyd 24006 SU3WIS 2103S 39 Bl Suney

pieAA SINOT







\ H\N :aJmeusdis
n.!.l.ll.ll\.-\\\.
001/99 oot/ oot/z8 00T/€6 00T/TL |e10]
s/¢ s/ s/s s/s s/s d4Y Jo ssauyadnosoy)
st/et st/ ST/0T ST/ET ST/21 3[2AD a1 ASojouyda) s i uonisod s30npo.d
ST/01 St/ st/tt ST/S1 ST/0T S[@AS7 3DIAISS JO 3lUd
st/ot st/ ST/ET ST/ET ST/Z1 513497 9215
01/9 ot/ 0t/L 01/6 ot/¢L 3s() JO ase]
ST/L st/ ST/0T ST/ST ST/01 $39npo.d Jo ANIeND
5Z/8t sz/ se/st Se/ee sz/st (a8ey2ed pue |enpiaiput) syonpoud Jo 1500
21026 Aeay 2103 HDRUH 24006 sd||iud | 2100 sudWIS 21005 39 B9 Suney

Aayeq siaed|







e

:2umeudis

00T/€v oot/ 001/28 0ot/e6 00T/LL |ejor
5/0 74 s/s /s s/s d4Y 4o ssauygnoioy]
st/0 St/ ST/01 ST/ST ST/t 324D 3J17 ABojouysa) sy | uoiyisod s1onpo.d
ST/ET St/ ST/v1 ST/ct ST/t §]aA37 9IIAIDS JO 3lUd
ST/oT st/ ST/Tt ST/ET ST/TT SELEYERNERS
ot/9 ot/ 0t/L ot/ot 01/9 as() Jo ase3
51/ st/ ST/ET ST/ST SI/ET s1onpoud Jo Ayljlenp
Sz/8t sz/ Sz/te st/te 5Z/81 (28exoed pue jenpiapul) $39npo.d Jo 1500
31005 Aeuy 2103 HPORUH 24036 sdjjiyd 94026 SUaWBaIs 94026 39 elal) suney

159U1R3 Y)Y







(>
%geazm_m

001/5L oot/ 00t/06 00t/L6 001/69 |elo]
g/s s/ s/s S/S s/s d4y jo ssauydnosoyy
ST/s st/ sT/0T ST/ST ST/S a|2AD 3417 ABojouyda) s)t ut uonisod $13npo.d
ST/01 ST/ ST/st S1/St S1/s S|2A37 @JIAIAS JO Alig
St/0T St/ St/st ST/t ST/PT S|aA27 221G
01/0T ot/ ot/o1 ot/ot ot/ot as Jo ased
ST/ST St/ ST/ST ST/ST sT/st s1onpoJd jo ANjenp
sz/oz cz/ 6¢/0z sz/se sz/stT (98eyaed pue |enpiaiput) s1onpoad Jo 150D
31025 Aeay 3102¢ K[DRUH 94026 sdjjiud 91036 SUBWBaIS 91026 19 eIl unley

siIeH ueAy







ll,l.lllllll..
2
:aameudis
00T/€8 oot/ 001/98 001/96 001/8¢L [er01
S/s s/ 5/s s/s 5/s d3Y Jo ssauydnoloy)
St/s st/ ST/ET ST/St ST/ST 8]2A) ay17 ABojouyaal sl ut uoinsod s19nposd
ST/st st/ ST/€T ST/stT St/Tt S|2AD7 2DIAISS JO 30l
ST/St St/ ST/s51 ST/1T qT/Et S|2A97 2IIAIBS
ot/ot ot/ 0T/0t ot/0t ot/ot asM Jo ase]
ST/ET st/ ST/ET ST/ST ST/ET s310npoJd Jo Ayjenp
sz/oz sz/ SZ/LT st/st SZ/ET (adexoed pue |enpiaipul) s1onpoud Jo 150)
2102§ Aeuy 2402 Hde)H 21036 sdjjiyd 2402§ SuUaWaIg 2402S 39 el1a1) suney

mnepuaqg wepy







5 vy P

— (o :asmeudis
001/69 oot/ 001/08 00T/L6 001/89 [e10)
/s s/ S/s 5/s 5/S d4Y Jo ssauydno.oy)
ST/0T s1/ ST/0T ST/sT s1/01 324D 3417 Adojouyaay s3 Ul uoisod s1anpoad
ST/ST ST/ s1/01 st/z1 St/s $|9A37 3213 JO 3dNd
ST/StT St/ ST/ST ST/ST ST/5T S|9AD] 321G
01/s ot/ 01/01 ot/ot 01/8 35N Jo ase]
S1/01 st/ ST/StT ST/ST ST/01 sjonpold jo Ayjenp
SZ/6 sz/ ST/st st/st §z/st (adexoed pue [enplalpul) s1onpoud Jo 150)

34006 Aeay 21005 HDeUH 24026 sdjjiud 34026 SUsaW3IS 3102S 30 el1a14) guney

uojSulyLIoN uely







ATHEcHmewT &

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESOLUTION 2017-11

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
adoption of a final budget, which provides a financial plan, including estimated revenues,
expenditures and reserves, for operation during the fiscal year July 1 through June 30.

WHEREAS, the budget submitted is required by law to be a balanced operating budget
for year July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018; Total Net Patient Revenue $23,900,112.00
with a bottom line of $3,760,900.00.

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned certifies and attests that the above resolution was
approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors, Burney, California, the 28th day
of June 2017.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on June 28, 2017, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Date Michael Kems, President
Board of Directors
Mayers Memorial Hospital District
Date Abe Hathaway, Secretary

Board of Directors
Mayers Memorial Hospital District



FISCAL YEAR July 1, 2017- June 30, 2018
BUDGET

APPROVED AND ADOPTED AT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REGULAR
MEETING THIS 28th DAY JUNE 2017.

Michael Kerns, President
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Abe Hathaway, Secretary
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT

Budget Prepared By:

MAYERS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DISTRICT

(Attachment: FY2018 Operating Budget)



Attachment H

Operations Report

June 2017
Mayers Memorial Hospital
May May May
Statistics YTD FY17 YTD FY16 Budget
fcurrent) (prior) YTD FY17

Surgeries (inciuding C-sections) 88 101 90

¥ Inpatient 23 38 16

¥ Outpatient 65 63 74
Procedures (surgery suite) 171 210 229
Inpatient 2028 2021 1944
Emergency Room 3720 3725 3300
Skilled Nursing Days 25141 25033 26400
OP Visits (OP/Lab/X-ray) 13939 15326 15939
Hospice Patient Days 753 1551 1672
PT 3006 2870 11071
Ambulance Runs 387 437 408

Operations District-Wide
Prepared by: Louis Ward, MHA, Chief Executive Officer

BUILDING PROJECT

Considerable progress has been made on the District’s largest project this month. A more detailed report on the building
project has been provided to the District Board by Ryan Harris, DOO which can be found in the June Board packet. A few
high level items worth noting, the project is still on schedule and on budget, we are nearing completion of the
Construction Document {(CD) phase of the project, and important discussions with the Office of Statewide Planning and
Development (OSHPD) are planned for the near future.

District Staff will be travelling to the OSHPD offices in Sacramento in late June to discuss our project, our plans to meet
the seismic requirements written into law, and of course continue to foster our good relationship with OSHPD. More

information to be reported on the OSHPD meeting will be presented verbally to the District Board and can be found in the
June Board meeting minutes.

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH (CDPH)

CDPH leadership has agreed to a meeting with all of the hospital leadership in the North State region, this meeting will
occur on July 11th Enloe Medical Center in Chico. This meeting will cover topics such as:

1. CDPH federal and state jurisdiction, mission and responsibilities

2 Recent and upcoming regulatory changes

3. How hospitals can stay current on changes

4, Newly released CDPH Dashboard

5 CDPH SNF responsibility and recent activity

Our District will be well represented at this meeting as we have been eager to meet with the California Department of
Public health regarding many of the above stated issues at regular intervals. CDPH has stated “the purpose of this meeting



is to help hospitals and CDPH to work more collaboratively to achieve the best outcomes for the patients we all serve”.
We are looking forward to this meeting, a full report will be provided to the District Board in the July Board meeting.

CDPH SURVEYS

As reported in past Board minutes the hospital recently underwent both an Acute Hospital Survey and a Fire Life Safety
Survey. We received the final report from CDPH in late May which stated any deficiencies observed by the surveyors
while here at the hospital. As stated in the past board meeting, the survey went very well and this was evident in the final
report the hospital received. Since receiving the report Staff at the hospital went right to work developing and
implementing a plan of corrections (POC) for all stated deficiencies. I am happy to report the POC for both surveys was
submitted timely and is now in the possession of the California Department of Public Health.

EMPLOYEE EVALUATION SOFTWARE

In an effort to ensure all employees are receiving continued feedback from their direct supervisors thee District has
invested in an electronic evaluation software. We feel continued feedback is an important aspect of what makes
organizations thrive as communication is key to ensuring all employees feel heard, problems are addressed timely, and
provide a platform for all staff to engage in conversations that will improve our ability to meet our mission, always put
patients first.

Employee evaluations are not new to Mayers, it is the way we are performing and documenting the evaluations that we
are seeking to change. We want the evaluation to be a process and not an event. We want to provide the tools to our Staff
that will allow for conversations related to performance to happen throughout the year, which will aid us in the ability to
rectify issues or recognize hard work in a more timely fashion.

The software is now in place thanks to the hard work of Libby Mee, Director of HR. All Managers attended an in person
training in early June as well as they have been provided with a video training for future viewing if needed. The new
evaluation software and process will be live and in use July |

EMPLOYEE MEETINGS

Administration is currently developing an employee presentation, which will be presented to ail employees in mid-July.
The current schedule for the employee meetings are July 12th at 10:00 AM and 3:30 in Burney and July 13th. These
meetings are occurring quarterly as this was not only the desire of administration but when employees were polled on how
often the meetings occurred, quarterly was the consensus. Topics will include:

1. A building project update

2, Q/A of the new employee evaluation software

3. MMHD summer activities

4. Wage Scale and how it relates to employee evaluations

Administration also makes a point to keep the presentation to roughly half of the scheduled time of the meeting to allow
employees to ask questions on any of the above topics or any topic that involves the hospital, employees, services, and
patient care.

TELEMEDICINE

As reported in past board meetings, MMHD is actively working on introducing a new service to our community,
Telemedicine. As well as introducing this new service, we are partnering with many organizations in an effort to provide
access to specialty providers affiliated with large teaching hospitals to our patients without patients ever having to leave
their local hospital. Up to this point, the district had enlisted the help of a contracted Telemedicine Consultant, Amanda
Harris. [ am happy to report that as of July 1 Amanda Harris will no longer be a consultant to the hospital, she will join
our MMHD TEAM as an employee, in her new role as Telemedicine Coordinator. Attached to the June Board packet you
will find a report prepared by Amanda Harris, Telemedicine Coordinator. As well as bringing on Amanda Harris as an
employee, we also have secured a Physician Director for the Telemedicine Service. Aaron Babb, MD will serve as the



Medical Director for the Telemedicine program. He brings a great deal of expertise and knowledge to our program; we are
excited to have him as part of the TEAM.

Chief Clinical Officer Report
Prepared by Keith Earnest, Pharm.D.--Chief Clinical Officer

Partnership Health has purchased a van to transport patients they insure to healthcare appointments. Reliable
transportation will be a benefit to the clinical division, the PRIME program and tele-health.

Physical Therapy
. The back door of the physical therapy building has been replaced!
. Patients are now being booked out to the second week of August.

Respiratory Therapy

. The V60 BiPAP has arrived and respiratory and nursing staff will be trained on this equipment starting on June
27th.
. Our first 30 patients have been enrolled in Mayers Million Hearts program. Mayers will be submitting to PRIME

shortly. We have since enrolled three additional patients. Respiratory Therapy Manager and Clinical Director,
Adam Dendauw, RT, is heading up this project.

Cardiac Rehab

. The department is to capacity with 9 monitored patients!

. Dr. Dahle is on track to complete his Cardiac Stress Treadmill training at the end of June with Dr Chandramouli.

Pharmacy

. The Medication Administration portion of Point Click Care went live June 1st.

. The plan of corrections from the recent survey was submitted and CDPH has asked for further details in some
areas which will be submitted this week.

. The ceiling tiles were replaced with solid washable tiles to minimize dust.

. The Pyxis upgrade will be complete June 22nd.

Imaging

. The RFP’s for imaging equipment for the hospital expansion project were received and reviewed. A vendor has

been selected. Ryan Harris will give further details in his report.

Laboratory

. Chris Hall, CLS, Laboratory Manager, is creating charge codes for organism identification. This is not a charge
we have been capturing in the past.

. The lab department and IT are working on the interface between LabCorp and Paragon to transmit billing
information.

. Mayers lab will be processing specimens from the Mountain Valley Health Center’s Health Fairs scheduled in

August,



Skilled Nursing Facility — Burney & FRM
Submitted by: Sherry Wilson, RN, CNO

Current census is at 75

Registry usage has been up with Licensed and Certified staff. Point Click Care our electronic medical record program for
skilled nursing went live on June Ist as scheduled, The process has been a smooth transition with minimal issues since
going live. Big Kudos to the staff for being patient and greeting this change as an opportunity to provide our residents
better quality of care. This will also create a more time managed clinical environment for themselves. Going forward we
are all excited of further opportunities and data this new system will provide us to access.

Critical Access Hospital
Submitted by: Sherry Wilson CNO/Acute

Surgery

Referrals for May:

23 — Referrals

19 — Scheduled (3 cancelled, 2 Rescheduled, 1 may reschedule in June, 1 cancelled since Dr. Guthrie did not come;
patient has not decided if they will reschedule), 2 have not received insurance clearance, 1 not having procedure done at
all, 1 Per Dr. Syverson, the patient is having other tests done 1st and then patient may schedule.

. Dr. Guthrie cancelled his day for the Month of May, as there was only one case scheduled

. There were 2 weeks this month with only one scheduled Procedure (Endoscopy) each week, this was due to
patients either not wanting to schedule at that time or from patients cancelling.

. During this period of low census:

¥ We have started to send out our Endoscopy scopes for routine maintenance and service

v" T have been assisting Infection Control with Data Collection and Entry

v" Central Sterile has been able to catch up on Monthly Inventory Rotation and Housekeeping
® Acute Survey

v"  Humidity need to be able to be controlled in the OR setting, { Louis Ward and Ryan Harris will be
heading this issue)

v" Central Sterile Competencies have been brought up to date

v" Malignant Hyperthermia Box has been appropriately moved and the P&P edited to accommodate this
move

e Fire Survey



v [ was not made aware of any major findings for our Depart.ment.

. The Admitting/Recovery/Discharge RN has taken another position outside of MMHD, therefore we will have to
utilize RN Staff from Station 1 to cover these days starting June 6th (as of today 1 am unable to find assistance for the
June 6th)

. Our department is still in need of a Housekeeper, Sherry Rodriguez steps up and helps when she is able.

Shelley Lee has stepped up to do the Admitting/Discharging of Endoscopy patients on Wednesdays.






Telemedicine Update as of June 16, 2017
Prepared by Amanda Harris for Louis Ward, CEQ and Dr. Aaron Babb, Medical Director

Logistics:

The IR Program has been temporarily removed from the clinic room. Now it will be
shared between employee health (twice a month for physicals) and Telemed. This
arrangement is beneficial because employee health wanted an exam table and there
would be use for this in the Telemed clinic as well, where the gurney for IR wasn’t
feasible. We’'ll have to reassess with IR after six months or so.

UCD is building a new ER cart for Mayers. After it's built and UCD physicians are trained
on it, they will be bringing it up here and doing an in-service for us. | will be looking into
exactly how it is going to be used for Peds and what our use for this grant has been like
in the past. Since it will be Zoom based software, I'd like to look into other uses for this
cart as well. This will be a welcome replacement to the older cart that was in the ER that
couldn’t be used with the wifi and would also beep constantly when unplugged because
the alternate power source was going bad.

The vitals cart for Telemed clinic has been ordered. The implementation call for our new
specialties has been set for Wednesday, 6/21 at 2pm. After | get the details about the
Endo clinic I'll need to order monofilaments. | will also begin to follow up with Mountain
Valley referral coordinators to set up protocols with the help of Susan Knoch.

| received notice that the electronic stethoscope has been shipped. This will be stored
with our other peripheral cameras (when they arrive) to be used at a later date if we
decide to do Cardiology.

RUS/USDA Distance Learning/Telemed Grant opportunity:

The info webinar for this grant was this Thursday. The application deadline for this grant
is July 17. Given Jessica’s background in grant writing and that she is our backup
coordinator, | asked if she review the recording of the webinar as well.
o Minimum match is 15%, min grant request is 50k, max request is 500k
o It must be synchronous telemed/distance ed (meaning live video, no store and
forward)
o We still haven't chosen a subject for this grant, some of my suggestions were as
follows:

* We could approach Dr. Kahn about doing a joint submission where he
would get the equipment so that we could do cardiac pre/post-up
appointments. This would distinctly support him more than Mayers but
we would be the beneficiaries of some of their services. While this would
be great for him, I'm not sure it's necessary for us now that we're
exploring more options with Zoom software.

* Project ECHO — As mentioned in a previous update, this is the physician
education module system created by UCD. We could see about getting a
cart or system set up specifically for this and see if some of the services
from UCD could be supported by the grant. | was specifically interested in
Hep C and Pain Management modules previously, but there was also a



o

o

unit on Peds that another rural clinic praised at our CTRC workshop. |
requested more information on options from UCD.
=  We could explore options with the 5150 service in the ER. We could find
out how much the InTouch psych services that Shasta Regional uses in
their ER are and see if that's something we’d be willing to look further
into. We could apply for a cart dedicated to that.
= What about the CNA training that Mayers is coordinating/contributing
to? Could some of that be run via telemed on a devoted cart?
| feel like we need to apply for something, it's hard for me to let a grant
opportunity pass by even though we have a lot going on right now in this
department. I'd really like if we could pick one of the educational missions. | feel
like we could also use that new cart to run a 2" telemed clinic room if necessary
in the future. The entire webinar is 1 hr and 23 min long so at the time of this
update | haven’t had a chance to watch the entire thing but | will very soon.
If we can pick a direction Jessica and | can get started on the application.



